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Pinewood Group Limited

Strategic Report

Business overview

Pinewood Group Limitad {"Pinewsod™ ar the "Group”} is the feading independent provider of the real estate required to produce
screen based conlent. In addition, Pinewood offers services that support the screen based industries including certain posi-
production services.

The Group has historically had two reporting segments — Media Services, which provides studio facilities and related production
services 1o the screerrbased industries; and Media Investment, which provides investment funding and production services 1o the
screen-based industries. In the year to 31 March 2018, the Group announced its decision that the Media hvestment segment
would cease trading. The ceased activities do nol meet the definition of discontinued operations as they have nol been disposed of
and centain legacy balances remain at the reporting date.

Our Media Services business principally generates revenue from the provision of space and ancillary services to film and television
production hauses, together with other Media Hub businesses. The business also provides other sound, picture and localisation
sarvices to its production customers.

Business review

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Group revenue increased by 5.2% to £85.8 million in the year (2018: £81.7 million). Exciuding the d Media investment
segment {revenua of £nil (2018: £2.0 million)), revenue increased by £6.2 million or 7.8%. This increase was primarily driven by
increased occupancy in workshop and office space, together with a price increase, whilst stage occupancy remained strang. Within
Media Services, our post-production business also performed well, with increased audio, casting and localisation work.

Cost of sales decreased by £2.0 million to £41.0 million, principally from the cessation of the Media Investment business and
rationalising some minor ancillary product offerings and cosis within our Media Services business.

Group gross profit of £45.0 million (2018: £38.7 million) increased by 16.1%. With the cessation of the Media investment business,
gross profit margin for the Group increased by 4. 9ppt to $2.3% (2018; 47.4%,).

Selling and distribution cosis decreased by 18.9% to E1.7 million {2018: £2.1 million) and administrative expenses increased by
16.0% to £8.3 miliion (2018: £7.1 million), Excluding exceptional iterns, administrative expense decreased to £7.4 milkon from £7.7
million.

The Group discloses significant financial impacts ansing from events which are one-off or unusual in nature as exceptional itlems.
An exceplional charge of £0.9 million was racognised in the year (2018: £0.5 million income), representing the cost of the
performance improvement review, and changes to the management structure, which commenced in April 2017. The prior year
comparative includes a cost in relation to this programme of £0.8 million, together with a £0.4 mitlion upwards revision 1o the value
of the Group's 15% equity holding in PMBS Holdings Limited and the release of a £0.9 million accrual of a rent-free period at the
Welsh studios, following the Group's decision to lerminate its lease on the Welsh studios.

Group operating profit increased by 18.7% to £35.0 million (2018: £29.5 million). Excluding exceptional items and the ceased
Media Investiment segment, Group operating profit increased by 20.2% to £35.9 million (2018; £29.8 million), which delivered an
improved margin of 41.7% (2018: 37,5%). Group operating profit has been reconciled on the face of the Group Statement of
Comprehensive Income. -

income from participating interests at £1.4 million loss (2018: £3.1 million profit), reflected a period of reduced activity experienced
by our 40% joint venture in Attanta. Following the reporting period to 31 March 2019, there has been an increase in occupancy in
the sacond half of the 2019 calendar year.

Interest receivable and similar income increased to £5.7 million (2018: £3.8 milion), reflecting a full year's interest eamed on the
£127.5 million loan to the Group's parenl company, Picture Holdca Limited. Interest payable and simitar charges increased to
£11.9 million (2018: £6.1 million}, following the December 2017 refinancing to support studio devalopment at Pinewood East and
the real estate eplimisation programme at Pinewood Wesl. The previous senior debt facility of £97.5 million was repaid es a part of
this refinancing.

Profit on ordinary activilies before tax reduced by 9.5% to £27.4 million (2018: £30.3 million). The strong trading result of the
Media Services business, was offsal by the trading resull in Atlanta, together with the increased net finance costs of developing
Pinewood East phase 2 which is due to be compleled in October 2019, Corporation 1ax was charged at an effective rate of 22.1%
(2018: 19.5%). Profit on ordinary aclivities after taxation was £21.3 million (2018: £24.4 million).



Pinewood Group Limited

Strategic Report {continued)

Business review {continued)

Statement of Financial Position .

Net assets increased by £22.1 million 1o £171.1 million (2018: £149.0 miliion). This reftecls a net increase of £33.4 million in
property. plant and equipment, a £2.8 million investment in our Atlanta joint venture, offset by a reduclion in trade receivables in
the year of £12.4 million. Amounts due from customers in Aprit 2018, were received in March 2019, so reducing trade receivables
this year.

The Group invested £43.1 million in propenty, plant and equipment, having prograssed development of c. 200,600 sq.ft of lettable
space al Pinewood East phase 2 and redevelopment of certain lettable space at Pinewood West. The Group also acquired c. 80
acres of land adjacent 1o Pinewood East.

Trade and other payables have increased by £2.8 million as at 31 March 2019 to £51.6 mition (2018: £48.8 million) predominartly
due to an increase in capital expenditure related payables.

Financing and cash flow

Net cash flaw from operating activities was £39.6 milfian, up by 116% an prior year (2018: £18.3 miltion}. This increase was caused
by three key factors, being £6.8m from improved cash flows from operating activities before changes in working capital, 2 c.
£20.0m improvement from the timing of receipts from our customers, and a partially offsetling increase of £6.9 million of net
interesi payments.

Centain customer receipts ara co lly due ir iately following the financial year end. The early or delayed receipt of these
amounts can cause significant movements in working capital. In the reporting period fo March 2019, amounts not due until April
2019 were received early, in addition 10 amounts due in April 2018, Tha prior year to 31 March 2018 did not banefit from these
simitar customer receivables, as they had been seitlad earty with the Group in the year to March 2017. The avarall impact due o
timing of customer recaipts was an improvemant of ¢. €20 million against prior year.

Interest paid increased o £10.2 millon (2018: £2.6 million}, following the refinancing of the £250.0 million of 3.75% senior debt in
Cecember 2017, and the repayment of the £§7.5 million of previous senior debt.

During the year, the business invested £39.2 million in capital expenditure {2018; £7.7 million) as described above, and invested
£2.9 million into the Atlanta joint venture. Cash and cash equivalents decreased in the year by £3.1 million (2018: increased by
£14.6 million).

Met debt at the end of the year stood at £206.9 miflion (2018. £203.1 million), which includes the 3.75% senior secured notes net of
unamertised arangement fees and accrued interest of £246.7 million, £0.2 million of asset financing, net of £39.9 million of cash.

At 31 March 2019 our committed borrowing facilities were £300.0 million, comprising the 3.75% senior notes of £250.0 millien ang
the super senior revolving credit facility of E50.0 million. The revoiving credit facility remained undrawn throughou the yiur.



Pinewood Group Limited

Strategic Report (continued)
Performance measures

Performance of the Group is monitored intemally using a variety of statutory and alternative performance measures (APMs). APMs
are used where management considers (hey are more represeniative of underlying trading or in monitenng performance zgainst
the Group's objectives. Staga occupancy provides insight to the utisation of the Group’s stage faciliies. Adjusted EBITDA is an
important melric because it reflects the underlying eamings of the core business and is reflective of normalised cash flow.
Additional information is provided within the adjusted net debl calculation to enable bettar understanding of the impact of the
effective interest rate calculations. Definilions of the APMs and reconciliations 1o the equivalent siatutory measures are detailed
below, The measures used are:

31 March 31 March

2018 2018

Notes £900 £000

Stage occupancy 94% 96%
Tumaover {(a@xchuding Media Investment ceased) 2 85,928 79,630
Adjusted EBITDA (see below} 44672 42,338

Adjusted EBITDA margins (EBITCA/Revenue) 52.0% 53.1%
Cash generated from operations 52,748 23,624

Adjusted net debt {see below) (210,257} (207,681}
Capital expenditure 42,125 6,399

Stage occupancy for March 2018 has bean amended from 93% to 96% to exclude the specialist underwater U stage and Paddock
Tank. Stage occupancy is formulated by calculating the proponion of square footage utilised as a percentage of square footage
available.

Group profit on ordinary activities after taxation for the year ended 31 March 2019 was £21.3 million (2018: £24.4 million}, including
the impact of exceplional items and the movemeni on fair value of financial derivatives.

Capital expenditure represents the total purchase of property, plant and equipment, purchase of intangible assets, investment in
joint ventures and repayment from joint ventures, as disclosed in the statement of cash flows.

Reconciliation of profit on ordinary activities after taxation to adjusted EBITDA

31 March 31 March
2019 2018
Notes £'000 £000
Profit on ordinary activitios after taxation 21,321 24,358
Olher intergst receivable and similar income {5,679) {3,773)
Interest payabla and similar expenses 11,879 6,067
Tax charge on profit on erdinary activities 6,059 5,905
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 8,707 8,811
Amortisation of goodwill 560 560
Exceptional items 3 873 {549)
Operating loss attributable to Media nvestment - FFC - 257
Operating loss attributable to Media Investment - other - 648
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 952 54
Adjusted EBITDA 44,672 42,338
Reconciliation of adjusted net debt
31 March 31 March
2019 2018
£000 £000
Current assels
Cash and cash equivalents 39,914 43,043
Cumment borrowings
Asset financing {171) -
Non-current borrowings ' :
High yield bond (247,945) (246,681)
Asset financing - (724)
Drawn loan facllities, less curreni assets {208,202) (204,362)
Secured loan arrangement costs 1,268 1,282
Net debt {206,934) {203,080)
Adjustments; .
Interest accrued 2,812 3,042
Secured loan arrangement costs {1,268} {1,282)
High yield bond arrangement costs (4,867} {6,361)
Adjusted net debt {210,257) {207,681}



Pinewood Group Limited

Strategic Report {continued)

Principal risks and uncertainties
The Group’s principal risks and uncéttainties are as follows:

Commercial and general risk

The Group is dependent on demand for production of new screen conlent and film productions, Any changes in demand for these
praductions or technological developments resulting in decreased demand for our studios could have a material adverse effect on
ow business.

Exit from the European Union

Although the majority of our direct customers are UK-registered companies, thay tend also to be subsidiaries of predomi iy US
film and TV production carporations. If sterling were 10 fall further on an exit from 1he EU with no deal in place, the UK would be an
attractive place to invest for film production purposes. However, a devaluation of sterling may also increase the cost of imparied
supplies for our construction activities and specialist equipment.

It is not expected that \here will be a significant direct impact of a no-deal Brexit on imports and exports by Pinewood from and to
non-EU countries in the mediem term. It should be noled that, in the short term, there may be delays and issues arising from
incompiete or novel legistaiion coming into force, a lack of suitably trained border staff and capacily consiraints and "contagion™
frormn EU originated procedural delays. However, there is a risk that a no deal Brexil may affect Pinewood's schedule of
produclions because of delays in the movement of personnel and equipment associated with the third parties.

It is challenging to assess the impact g Pinewood's third party suppliers, panicularly al the second or third level down in a supply
chain, be it for goods or services, Some of these services sit several levels bslow the primary supplier to Pinewood.
Consequently, whilst it may be possible to interrogate primary suppliers of goods and servicas about the impact of a no deal Brexit
on their supplies to Pinewood, they may not be in a position o assess ihe impact on their sub-suppliers at lower levels of the
supply chain.

Daveicpment risk

The Group may undenake a numbar of capital expenditutes, including in connection with the further development and expansion of
its existing studios, the inability to compiete such projects on time or at all, the inabllity to generate the desired retums therefrom or
the inability 10 raise additional capitai as might be raquired to complete such projects could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and resuits of operalions.

The Group engages advisors with the necessary experience to complement the Group's in-house teams and manage this risk,

Business conlinuily and disaster recovery

A major incident such as a fire or an explosion tould put people and/or the sites of operation a\ risk, resull in a loss of tumaver and
damage the Group's reputation.

A dedicated health, safety and fire team carries out regular risk evatuation. A Business Continuity Team is also in place to ensure
that the operational businass conlinues as far as possibls in the event of a major incident. The Group has an insurance portfolio,
which looks to mitigate potential incidents described. Il also invests in informalion technology and monitors the adequacy of its
applications in use on an ongoing basis.

Regquiatary and environmental risk
We are exposed to risks relating to regulations and liabilities arising from our operations and assets including environmental,
health and safety laws and liabililies.

Financial risk management

The main risk currently arising from the Group's financial instruments is liquidity risk. Interest rate risk, credit risk, foreign
@xchange risk and fiscal incentives are also considered below.

Liquidity risk

The Group rmanages s exposure lo liquidity risk at Group level. The Group's objsclive is 1o mainiain a balance between the
continuity of operating and development funding and flexibility using cash and a revolving cradit facility.

At the reporting date of 31 March 2019, the Group has banking facilities of up to £300.2 million, principally comprising a £50 million
revolving credil facility and a E250 million high yield bond. These facilities are secured on certain of the principal assets of the
Group. The revolving credit facility has one covenant and a range of events of default together with variable margins between
1325 and 232.5 basis points over LIBOR. Our joint venture at Atlanta alse has debt facilities 1otalling c. $72 million, with banking
covenants. The Group's borowings are subjett to certain covenants and a deterioration in performance and profitability could
affect the Group's ability to satisfy such covenants.



Pinewood Group Limited

Strategic Report {continued)
Principal risks and uncartainties {continued)

Interast rate risk

Intarest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future values of a financial instrument will flucluale because of changes in markel
interest rates. Given the Group's debt is subject to fixed rate interest rates, there is negligible risk to the resulls from interest rate
volatitity.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the rigk that a counter-party will not meet its obligalion under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial koss.

Customer credit risk is managed across the Group in accordance with policy, procedures and controls relating to customar credit
risk management. The Group trades with recognised, craditworthy third parties and it is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, studio spaca is billed in tranches priar to and
throughout tha period of customer occupancy, thereby allowing credit risk to be better controlled. Receivable balances are
manitored an an angoing basis to manage the Group's exposure to bad debls,

Foreign exchange risk

The Group does not hedge against foreign currency exposure due 1o Its minimal exposure to foreign currency movements as its
business is conducted primarily in UK steding. The Board continues to review this area to identify any potential exposure.

Fiscal regime i
Changes to the UK's film, animation, video games and high end television tax incentives or an increasa of incentives in overseas
jurisdictions could damage the attractiveness of the UK as a destination for film content creation. The Group monitors the culiural
and aconomit contribution that screen-based industries make to the UK economy.

Our tax burden could increase due to changes in tax laws, rules or traaties or their application or interpretation, adverse decisions
of tax authorities or current or future tax audits,

Competition risk
The Group competes in an international marketplace and film producers are abla to choose from a number of studios worldwide.

Were other existing studios to invest significantly, or new studios 1o be successhully established either in tha UK or elsewhere, this
may have a material adverse effect on the Group's market share, reduce its bargaining power in commercial negoliations, and
threaten profitability due 1o ongoing operalional costs being largely fixed in nature.

The Group continues to invest to ensure that the expectations and demand from the industry are met.

Post balance sheet events and future developments

In July 2019, the Group announced a mulli-year deal with Netflix, which sees Netflix creaiing a dedicated production hub, featuring
14 sound stages. workshops and offices at Shepperton Studics. The contract will deliver a higher occupancy level for the Group.

In July 2019, the Group announced that its collaboration with Pinewood lskandar Malaysia Studios ended by mutual agreement,
with the initial objectives of the callaboration achiaved, including the development of sludios in Malaysia. The studio will be known
as lskandar Malaysia Studios,

Goling Concarn

In assessing the going concem basis, the Directors cansidered the Group's business activities, the financial position of the Group
and the Group's financial risk management objectives and policies. The Group mests its day-to-day working capitsl requirements
through its bank facilities. The Group's forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonably possible changes in trading
performance. ecenomit uncertainty and Brexit, show that the Group will be able to operate within the level of its current facilities.

informalion on the Group's financial risk management, logether with other Principal Risk$ and Uncertainties ars detailed above in
the Strategic report. The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the Group has adequate resources ta
continue in the operational business for the foreseeabls future and have therefore continued to adopt the going concem basis in
preparing the financial statements.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Barbara Inskip
Divector
23 July 2019
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Directors’ Report
The Directors present their annual report and audited financial statemants of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Rasults and Dividends

Group profit on ordinary activities afier taxation for the year ended 31 March 2019 was £21.3 million {2018: £24.4 million), including
the impact of exceplional items and the movement on fair value of financial denvatives.

No dividends were patd during the year (2018: £12.0 milion). The Directors do not recammend payment of a final dividend.

Directors
The Directors, who served during the year and to the date of signing, unless otherwise indicated were as follows:

Paul Golding

Barbara Inskip {Appointed on 17 May 2019)
Luis Moner Parra

Christopher Naisby (Resigned on 17 May 2018)
Nathan Shike

Andrew Srmith

Alison Trewartha

Directors’ Liabilities

The Company has granted an indemnity to one or more of ils Direclors against liability brought by third parties, subject to the
conditions set out in the Companies Act 2008. Such qualifying third party indemnity provision remains in force as at the date of
approving the Direclors' Report.

Employeas

The Group actively considers the position of its employees’ rights through comprehensive and regularly reviewed employment
practices in the areas of recruitment, training, welfare, remuneration and employee relations.

In addition 1o a2 published grievance policy, the Group maintains 3 "Whistieblower' policy providing an opportunity for employees to
raise grievances with senier managemenit.

Tha Group's stated policy on Egual Opporlunities recognises the diversity of individuals and has p d in place to ensure that
fecruitment and promotion recognises such diversity and is not biased by consideration of age, gender, disability, colour, racial
arigin, religion or sexual orientation. We provide employees with reasonable conditions of employment and career prospects.

The Group supports its disabled employees with regular training and support through the equail opportunity and training poiicies,

The Group has regular contact with employees via its intranet site, Spolfight, and via regular catch ups and briefings. These
methods are used to ensure employees are kept up to dule wilh Uwe perfermance of the business. n addition, the Group
cantinucusly manages employees’ perfarmance.

Investing in skills, training and development remains a focus for the Company. This year two Pinewood employees compieted an
exacutive MBA for the Creative Industres. Their degrees were sponsored by Pinewood as part of our commitment to career
development. The Group also has a well-developed work apprenticeship scheme providing "in work® apprenticeships in areas such
as plumbing, carpaniry and media. The Company curfenily has six apprentices whose Iraining is paid for by the Apprenticeship
Levy. .

Pinewood's commilment to skills and training was acknowledged by winning the Apprentice and Young Person Employer of the
Year Award at the 2018 Buckinghamshire Business Awards.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
Branches outside of the United Kingdom

The Group operates through various subsidiery underiskings in various jurisdicions as disclosed in Note 5 1o the Parent
Compeny financial siatements, PSL Consulling Limited, a group campany, cperates 3 Beijjing Representative Office, which is 2
branch established in China as defined by Section 1046(3) of the Companies Act 2006.

Going Concem

As outlined within the Stralegic Repart on page 6. the Divectars have a rsascnable expectation Ihet the Group has adequata
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable fulure, As there are no material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concem, the Group continues 10 adopt
the going concem basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements,

Other Directors' Report Disclosure Requirements

Certain disclosures raquirad by s414C(11) of lhe Companies Act 2006 {o be included in the Directors Repont have been inciuded
elsewhere in this Annual Repart, as follows:

o Principal activities - Strategic Report, page 2

o Principal risks and uncenainties - Sirategic Report, pages 56
o Pos! balance sheet events - Strategic Report, page 6

o Indication of future developments - S gic Report, page 6

Directors’ $ tas to Disel ofl ion to Auditor

Tha Directcrs who were members of the Board at the lime of approving the Directars' repert are lisled on page 7. Having made
anquiries of lellow Directors, each of these Directors corfirms thati:

o To the best of each Divector's knowledge and beliaf, there is no information relevant to the preparation of their report
of which Lhe Group's auditor is unaware; and

] Each Direclor has taken all Ihe steps a Director might reasonably be expecied to have taken to be aware of relevant
audit information and io establish that tha Group's auditor is aware of lhat information.

This eorfirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance wilh the provisions of Seclion 418 of the Companies Act
Deloitie LLP are deemed 10 be reappoinmed under section 487(2) of the Companies Act 2006.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

Bridget Sheldon-Hill
Company Secretary
23 July 2019
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Statement of Directars' Responsibilities

The Disectors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Reporl and the Directors' Report and the financial statements in
accardance with applicabla law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors have
elecied 10 prepare the financiat statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice {United
Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) including FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicatie in the UK
ang Republic of Ireland”. Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of the profil or loss for that periad. In
preparing those financial statements, the Direclars are required to:

o selgel suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
[} make judgements and accounting estimates that are reascnable and prudent;

o state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any maleria) depanures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements; and

o prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and
the Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure
1hat the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are alse responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregularities.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Pinewood Group Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion .
In gur opinion the financial statements of Pinewood Group Limited {the 'parent company’} and ils subsidiaries (the ‘group’).

- give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of the group's
profit for the year then ended,

« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Praclice including Financial
Reporting Standard 102 “The Financia! Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of freland”, and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financia! statements of Pinewood Group Limited and its subsidiaries which comprise:
+ the Group Statement of Comprehensive income;

- the Group Staternent of Financial Position;

- the Group Statemant of Cash Flows;

+ the Group Statement of Changes in Equity;

- the related notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements 1 to 27;

« the Parent Company Staternent of Financial Position;

= the Parent Company Statements of Changes in Equity; and

« the related notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements 1 to 14.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting Slandard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland" (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice),

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intamnational Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statemenis
section of our report.

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibililies in accordance with these reguirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Woe are required by ISAs (UK} to report in respect of the following matters where:

- the directars’ use of the going cencern basis of accounting in preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or

- {he directors have not disclosed in the financial slalemenis any identified material uncentainties thal may cast significant doubt
about the group’s or the parent company’s ability to conlinue to adapt the going concem basis of accounting for a period of at least
twelve months from the date when the financial statements are autherised for issue.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matiers.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information inciuded in the annual
raport, other than the financial statements and our auditer's report therean. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and, except 10 the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusicn thereon,

in connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsgibility is to read the other information and., in doing 50, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears o be materially missiated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we
are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financia! statements or a matenal misstatement of the
other information. H, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this othar
information, we are required lo report that fact.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

10
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Pinewood Group Limited (continued)

Responslibilities of directors

As explained mare fully in the diractors' responsibllities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation cf the financial
statements and for being satisfisd that they give a true and fair view, and for such intemal control as the directors determine is
hecassary 10 enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due o fraud or eror,

In preparing the financial statements, the direclors are responsible for assessing the group's and the parent company’s ability to
continueg as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the gaing concem basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend 1o liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, of have no
realistic alternative but 1o do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur cbjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance aboutl whether the financial statements as a whole are freés from materia!
misstatement, whether due to fraud ar error, and to issue an auditor's repurt that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK will aiways detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually ar in the
aggregate, they ¢ould reascnably be expected to influsncs the economic dacisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financiat statements is located on the Financia! Reparting Council's
website at: www.fr¢.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This dascription forms part of our auditor's report.

Report on other legal and requlatory requiremants

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the sirategic report and the directors’ report for tha financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consislent wikh the financial statements: and
« the strategic report and the direclors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

in the light of the knowladge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and their environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report,

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of ths following matters if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or retums adequate for our audit have not been
recaived from branches not visitad by us; or

« the parent company financial statements are not in agreament with tha accounting recards and retums; or

» gortain disclosures of directors’ rermunaration specified by law are not made; or

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Gur audit work has been undertaken so that we might stale o the company’s mambars those matters we are required 1o
staie lo them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility ta anyone other thar the company and the company’s members as & body, {or aur audit work, for this report, or for
the opinions we have formed.

Adee. oo,

Andrew Evans (Senior statutory auditor)
for and an behalf of Detattte LLP
Statutory Auditor

Reading

United Kingdom

23 July 2018
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Pinewood Group Limited

Group Statement of Comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2019

The notes on pages 16 to 35 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes 2013 2018
£'000 £000
Turnover 2 85,928 81,663
Cost of Sales (40,956) (42,933)
Gross profit 44,972 38,730
Selling &, Distribution costs (1,717) {2,118}
RaMminiSlratve eXpensas - '
Recurring activities (7,388) (7.668)
Excoplicnal items 3 (873 549
Total adminisirative expenses (8,261) (7.118}
Operating profit 4 34,994 29,493
IComprising:
iOperating prafit{loss) from: ]
Madia Services activities before exceptional iterns 35,867 29,649
iMedia Investment - fitm production companies - (257)
Madia Investment - other activities - (848}
Exceptional items 3 (873} 549 |
14,954 79,493
Income from participating interests 8 (1,414) 31,064
Interest receivable and similar income 9 5,679 3,773
Interast payable and similar expenses 10 {11,879} (6.067)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 27,380 30,263
Tax on profit on ordinary activities " (6,059) {5.905)
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation attributable to
equity Shareholders 21,321 24,358
Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on transtation of foreign operations
on consolidation 809 (554)
Total comprehensive income for the year 22,130 23,804




Pinewood Group Limited

Group Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 March 2019

Notes 2019 2018
£000 £'000
Assets
Non current assels
Intangible assets 13 4,622 3,524
Property, plant and equipment 14 266,876 233,441
Interasts in joint venturaes 8 13,308 10,971
Other investments 15 1,680 1,680
Trade and other receivables 17 134,369 129,045
T Ta0855 T 3ma.0et
Current assets
Inventories 36 61
Trade and olher receivables 17 14,156 26,599
Cash and cash equivalents 18 39,914 43,043
S "X T T 89,703
Total assets 474,961 448,764
Equity and liabilities
Share capital 19 5,741 5741
Share premium 76,696 76,696
Capital redemplion reserve 135 136
Merger ressive 38 348
Transiation reserve 1.595 786
Retained eamings 86,598 65,277
Total equity 171,113 148,083
Non-current labliities
interast-bearing lpans and borrowings 29 246,677 245,122
Darivative financial instrurnants 22 2,206 1,781
Deferred tax liabilities 11 3,233 3.118
252,118 251,019
Current tiabilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 21 74 ~
Trade and other payables 23 51,561 48,762
51,732 48,762
Total liabliities 303,845 299,781
Total equity and Habilities AT 061 ZIE, T84

The financial statements of Pinewood Group Limited (registered number: 03889552) were approved and authorised for issua by
the Board of Directors on 23 July 2019. They were signed on its behalf by:

5 S NS

Barbara Inskip
Director

Tha notes on pages 16 to 36 farm part of these financial statements.
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Pinewood Group Limited

Group Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 March 2018

2019 2018

Notes £000 £'000
Cash flow from operating activities:
Profit an grdinary activities before taxation 27,380 30,263
Adjustments fo reconcile profit on ordinary activities before taxation 10 nel cash flows:
Depreciation, impairment ard amortisation 4 9,267 9,371
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4 952 54
Falr valus adjustment on PMES Haldings 3 . (460)
Income from participating interests 8 1414 {3,064)
Interest receivable and similar income 9 (5,679) (3.773)
Interest payable and similar charges 10 11,879 6,067
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital 45,213 38,458
Decrease/{increase) in trade and other receivables 17 12,066 (8.156)
Decreasel(increase) in inventories 25 )
{Decrease) in trade and other payables 23 {4,556} {8,670}
Cash generated from operations 52,748 23,624
interest paid {10,171) (2,587}
Interest received 732 56
Corporation tax received in respect of FPC activity 901 -
Corporation tax paid (4,649) (2,809)
Net cash flow from operating activities 39,561 18,284
Cash flow used in investing activities:
FProceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 438 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {37,925) (7,736}
Purchase of intangible assets {1,258) -
Investment in joint ventures {2,942) {196)
Repayment from joint ventures - 1,533
Loans made to parent undertakings - (127.474)
Net cash flow used in investing activities (42,077§ (133.873)
Cash flow from financing activities:
Dividends paid 12 - (11.950)
Proceeds from issue of loan notes 21 - 250,000
Repayment of asset financing abligations ) [613) {870}
Repayment of bank bormowings 4l - {100,000)
Payment of loan issue fees - (7.012)
Net cash flow {used in)from financing actlvities (613) 130,168
Net {(decrease)fincrease in cash and cash equivalents {3,129) 14,579
Cash and cash equivalents at the stan of the year 43,043 28,464
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 18 39,914 33,043

Included within the cash and cash equivalents balance is a total of £110.000 (2018: £390,000) which is unavailable for general
use. See Note 18.

The notes on pages 16 to 38 farm pant of these financial statements.
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Pinewood Group Limited

Reconciliation of Movement in Net Debt

for the year ended 31 March 2019 2019 2018

£'000 £000
{Decrease)fincrease in cash and ¢ash equivalents (3,129) 14,579
Repayments of bank borowings - 100,000
Proceeds from issue of loan notes . {250,000}
Repayments of asset financing obligations 533 780
Loan issue costs - 7643
Amortisation of loan issue costs (14} (438}
Interest accrued on loan notes {1,264) {3.042)
Movement in net debi (3.854] (130478}
Net debi at the start of tha vear (203,080} (72,602)
Net debt at the end of the year {206,934} (203,080)
Net debt at end of year excluding restricted cash 207,044 , 470,

Group Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 March 2019

Translation
Share capital Share premium reserve Other reserves  Relained earnings  Total equity
£'9000 £000 £000 £'000 E'000 £'000
At 01 Aprii 2018 5,741 76,696 786 483 65.217 148,983
Profit for the year - - - - 21.321 21,321
Transiation reserve movemenl - - 809 : - 809
Total comprehensive income for
the year - - 809 - 21,321 22,130
At 31 March 2019 5741 76,696 1,585 483 96,598 73,113
At 01 April 2017 5741 76,696 1.340 483 52,869 137128
Profit for the year - - - - 24,358 24,358
Translalion reserve movement - - {554) - - {554)
Total comprehensive incormne for
the year - - (554} - 24,358 23,804
Equity dividends (Note 12) B - - - (11.8950) {11,950}
At 31 March 2018 5741 76,696 I 483 65,277 ___148.883

The notes on pages 16 to 36 form part of these financial statements.
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Pinewcod Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2019

Pinewood Grovp Limited ("the Campany™} is a private company limited by shares incorporated and domicite¢ in England. The
registered office is located at Pirewood Studios, Pinewood Road, Iver Heath, Buckinghamshire, SLO ONH.

The Group's principal activitias and ihe nature of its operations are detailed in the Strategic Report on page 2.

1 Accounting palicies

The principal accounting policies are summarised below. They have all been applied consistently throughout the current year
and priar year.

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 The Financiat Reperting Standard applicable in
the UK and Republic of Ireland’ ("FRS 102"} and the requirements of the Companias Act 2006, inclyding the provisions of the
Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008, and under historical cost
convention, modified to include certain financial instruments at fair value.

The full finarcial stalements have been prepared with early adoption of the FRS 102 Triennial Review 2017 amendments in
full. This is the first set of financial statements where the Triennial Review amendments have been adopted and the
application date is therefore 1 April 2017. There have been no changes to amounts presented in respect of transactions or
balances in any of the main statemenis as a result of adoption of the changes, but certain disclosures relaling to financial
instruments have been updated in ling with the new requirements.

The financial statements are presented in sterfing, which is also the main functional cumency of the Group. Monetary
amounts in these financial statemants are rounded to the nearest whole £1,000 except where otherwise indicated.

Going concemn .
In assessing the going concern basis. the Directors considered the Group's business activities, the financial position of the

Group and the Group's financial risk management objectives and policies. The Group meets ils day-lo-day working capital
requirements through its bank facilities. The Group's forecasts and projections, taking accouni of reasonably possible
changes in frading performance. economic uncertainty and Brexit, show that the Group will be able to operate within the
level of its current facilities, The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the Group has adequate
resourcas to continug in the operational business for the foreseeable future and have therefore continued to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial stalements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise Ihe financial statements of the Group and its subsidiaries up to 31 March
2019. All intragroup transactions, balances, income and expenses are efiminated in full on consoligation. All subsidiaries are
consdlidated for the financial year ending 31 March 2019 regardiess of the individual entilies' statutery reporting date.
Individual entities within the Group that have a functional cumrency other than sterling are translated to stering so that the
consolidated financial statements may be presented.
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Pinewood Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2019

1

Accounting policies {continued)

Tumaver

Turnaver is recognised ta lhe extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will fiow to the Group and the turnover can
be reliably measured. Turnovar is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivablé, net of discounts, rebates, VAT
and cther sales taxes or duly. The Group has assessed ils lumaover arrangements and has concluded thal it is acting as a
principat in all of its tumover arrangements. VWhere a contract spans an accounting cut-off date, the value of the umover
recognised is the time proportion of the total value of the contract ¢ompleted by the cut-off date. The following specific
recognition criteria apply: .

Media Services:
o Fim customers ulilise services for a period of time. Turnover is recognised as the
Group eams the right to consideration for the service provided and this is time apportioned and earned
as time elapses.

o Film tusmover is also derived from international sales and marketing agreemenis and certain
consultancy agreements. Revenue is recognised on a stage of completion basis by reference te cosls
issued for the former, and based an the passage of fime for the latier.

o Telavision turnover is darived from the provision of services and is recognised on a time
apportioned basis in relation to the television produciion process.

o Media Hub tumnever is derived from customers contracting to use the Group's facililies
for a perod of fime. Tumover is recognised on a siraight line basis over the 1arm of the agreement

Media Investment:
o The business segment ceased irading in the year ended 31 March 2018 with certain legacy balances
remaining at the reporting date.

o External invesiment advisory turnover is detived from the provision of services on a per
film investment basis, with turnover from an annual management fee recognised on a straight line basis
over the course of the yaar.

o Film Production Companies’ turnover relates to the funding provided from the various financiers
{excluding loans against fax credit, which are recognised as 4 liability on the Group statement of
financial position). Tumover recognised is the proportion of completion of the relevant project.

Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign cumencies are recorded at the rate of exchange at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign cumenties at the balance sheet date are reported al the rates of exchange pravailing at that
date.

The resuits of overseas operations are translated at the average rates of exchange during the period and their balance
sheets at the rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising on translation of the opening net assels
and results of overseas operations are reported in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity {attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

Other exchange differences are recognised in profil or loss in the period in which they arise except for.

o exchange differences arising on gains or l0Sses on non-monetary items which are recognised in othar
comprehensive income,

o unrealised gains or losses are recognised in other comprehensive income; and

0 in the case of the consolidated financial statements, exchange differences oh monetary items receivable
from or payable 10 a foreign operation for which setlement is neither plannad nor likely 10 sccur
{therefora forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation}, which are recogniséd in other
comprehensive income and reporied under equity.

Employee benefits

The costs of shori-term employee benefits are recognised as a liability and an expense. unless those costs are required to
be recognised as par of the cost of stock or are capitalised as an intangible fixed asset or a tangible fixed asset.

The cost of any unused entitiement is recognised in the period in which the employee's sefvices are received.

The best estimate of the expentiture réquired 1o seltle an obligation for termination benefits is recognised immediately as an

expense when the Group is demonstrably commitied to terminate the employment of an employee or to provide lermination
benefits,

17



Pinewood Group Limited

Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements {continued}
for the year ended 31 March 2018

1

Accounting policies (continued)

Pensions and other post-employment benefits
The Group operates a defined contribution scheme. Contribulions are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme.

intergst receivable and payable
Interest receivable and payable is recognised using the effective interast rate method.

Corporation tax

Corporation lax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable. The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes items of incame or
expense that are laxable or deductitée in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current lax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
staterment of financial position date.

Carporation tax relating 1o items recognised direclly in equity is recognised in other comprehensive income and the
statement of changes in equity and nat in the income statement.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expecled 1o apply to the period when the assel is realised or the liability is
sattled based on lax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised in respect of all timing differences that exist at the reporling date. Timing diferences
are differences between taxable profits and total comprehensive income that arise from the inclusion of income and
expenses in tax assessments in different periods from their recognition in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the axient that it is probable that they will be recovered by the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other
fulure 1axable profits,

Deferred tax is recognised on income and expenses from subsidiaries, associates, branches and interests in jointly
controlied entities, that will be assessed to, or allow for, tax in a future period excapl where the company is able to control
the reversal of the liming difference and it is probable that the timing difference will not reverse in 1he foraseeable future.

Film tex credits

Fitm tax credits are recognised in profit or loss for the period in line with the cost incumed over the period of a film project.
Where the rate of expenditure incurmed is not proportionate 1o the rate of qualifying expenditure, the diflerence in film tax
cradits is accrued or deferred on the Group statement of financial position.

Film investments

Film investments are classified as investments at fair value and due to the uncerainty of return on investmant are typically
determined to have a £nil fair value, The Group reviews the fair value at least annually. Any net changes in fair value are
recognised in the income statement.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets excluding goodwill, when idenlified, are capitalised at cost and subsequently amortised over their useful
econamic life on the following bases:

The software asset is not yel in use and so is not being depreciated, accordingly. The anticipated useful life is between 5
ang 10 years and will be determined al the point ihe software is completed and in use.
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Pinewood Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2019

1

Accounting policies {cominued)

Goodwill
Goodwill on acquisition is inltially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the

acquiter's interes! in the nel fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. Following initial
recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any amortisation or accumuylated impaiment loss. Goodwill is expecled to
have a useful life of 10 years and is amortised over thal period. Goodwill is revieweo for impairment annually or more
frequently it events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. Far the purpose of
impaitment testing, goodwill is allocated to the related cash-generating unit monitored by management. Where the
racoverable amount of the cash-generaling unit Is lass than the carrying amount, including goodwill, an impairment loss is
recognised in the income statement,

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant ang equipment arg stated at cost to the Group less ace: lated dap ion and any impal 1 loss. Cost
comprises the aggregate amount paid and the fair value of any other consideratian given to acquire the asset and includes
costs directiy atiritxtable to making the asset capable of operating as imended. Depreciation is calculated on all property,
plant and equipment, other than land, from the time Lthey are available for use on a straight line basis over the estimated
useful fife as follows:

Freehold buildings - 30to 50 years

Freehold improverments - 5w 25 years

Leasehold improvements - shorter of 25 years or the term of the lease
Fixtures, fittings and equipment - 3o 10 years

Land and assets under construction are not depreciated.

The carrying value of freehold land and buildings within 'Property, plant and equipment' in the statement of financial position
is based on external valuations undertaken by an independent firm of Chartered Surveyors in February 2000 {as amended in
January 2001) and November 2000, on each occasion to establish the fair values of the Pinewood Studios and Shepperton
Studios businesses acquired. Subsequent to these valuations, which established the cost to the Group of freehotd land and
buildings, additions. disposals and depreciation have been recorded in line with Group accounting policies.

The carrying value of property, plant and equipmant Is reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances
indicate the canrying value may not be recoverable, and is written down immediately 1o the recoverable amount. Useful lives
ang residual values are reviewed annually and where adjustments are required, these are made prospectively.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal. Any gain or loss arising in de-recognition of the
assel {calculated as the diffe bet 1 the: net disposal pr ds and the carrying amount of the itemn) is included in the
income statement in the year the item is derecognised.

interasts in joint ventures
The Group has interests in joint ventures. A joint venture is a joint arangement whereby two or more parties that have joint
control of the arrangement have rights (o the nel assets of the arrangement.

The Group accounts for joint ventures under the equity method of accounting. Under the equlty method of accounting, a
joint venture is initially recognised in the Group statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter 1o recognise
the Group's income from participating interests and ather comprehensive incoma of the joint venture. When the Group's
share of losses of the joint venture exceads the Group's Interest in that joint venture, the Group disconlinues recognising ils
share of funther Ipsses. Additional losses are only recognised tc the extent that the Group has incurred tegal or construclive
obligations or made paymenis on behalf of the joint venture.

¥When a Group entity transacts with a joint venture of the Group, profits and losses rasulting from the transactions with the

joint venture are recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements only 1o the exteni of inierests in the joint
veriure that are not refated to the Group.
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Pinewood Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2019

1

Accounting policies {continued}

Inventories

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell. Inventory held for
distribution at no or nominal consideration is measured at cosl, adjusted whare applicable for any loss of service potential,
i.e. banefits expected from use or sale of the inventory, Cost is determined using the weighted average cost.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether inventories are impaired or if an impairment less recognised in prior
periods has reversed. Any excess of the camrying amount of stock over its estirmated selling price less costs to complete and
sell is recognised as an impairment loss in profit or loss.

Reversals of impairmenl losses are also recognised in profil or loss.

Impairment of assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the assel's
recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (*CGU") fair value
tess cosis w sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, untess the asset does not generale cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset
or CGU exceeds its recoverable ameunt, the assat is considered impaired and is writlen down to #ts recoverabls amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 1o their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 1o the asset. In determining Fair
value less costs to sell, an appropriale valuation model is used.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument.

Financial abilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual amangemenis entered
into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities.

Financial assels and liabilitias

All financial assels and liabilities are initialty measured al transaction price {including transaction costs), except for those
financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair value (which is normally
the transaction price excluding transaction costs), unless the amangement constitules a financing transaction. if an
arrangement constitutes a finance transaction, 1he financial asset or financial tiability is measured at the present value of the
future payments discounted al a market rate of interast for a similar dabt instrument.

Financial assats are derecognised when and only when a} the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assel
expire or are settied, b) the Group transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, or c) the Group, despile having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership, has transferred
contral of the asset to ancther party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirsty to an unrelated
third parly and is able 1o exercise ihat ability unilaterally and without needing to impose additional rastrictions on the transfer.

Financial liabilities are derecognised only when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged. cancelled or expires.
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Pinewood Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2019 -

1

Accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (coritinued)

invastments

In the Company statement of financial position, for invesiments in subsidiaries acquired for consideration including the issue
of shares qualifying for merger relief, cost is measured by reference to the nominal value only of the shares issued. Any
premium is ignored.

Equily insfruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the fair value of proceeds received. cash or other resources
received or receivable, nat of direct issue costs.

Fair valug maasurament

The besi evidence of fair value is a quated price for an identical assel in an aclive market. When quoted prices are
unavailable, the price of a recent transaction for an identical asset provides evidence of fair value as long as there has nol
been a significant change in economic circumstances or a significant lapse of ime singe the transaction took place. If the
market is not active and recant iransactions of an identical assel on their own are nol a good estimate of fair valve, the
Company gstimates the fair value by using a valuation technigue.

Interast-bearing loans and borrowings

Obligations for loans and borrowings are recognised when the Group becomes party to the related contracts and are
measured initially at the fair values of consideralion received less directly attributable transaclion costs. After initial
recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequenlly measured at amonised cost using the effective interest
method, altocating the interest income or interest expense over Lhe relevanl period.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group has interest rale swaps to hedge against risks associated with interes! rate fluctuations. Derivatives are initially
recognised al fair value at the dale a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured 10 their fair value
at each statement of financial position date. The Group reports the movemen! in fair value through profit or loss.

The fair values of the interest rate swap contracts are determined by reference to markeq values for similar instruments.

A derivative with a positive fair value is racogmised as a financial assel wheroas a darivative with 2 negalive fair value is
recognised as a financial liability. A derivative is presented as & non-current asset or liabifity if the remaining maturity of the
instrument is more than 12 months and it is not expected 1o be realised or settled within 12 months, Other derivatives are
presented as current assets or current liabilities.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a prasent obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, itis
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obiigation and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the cbligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are delermined by discounting the expacted future cash Nows
at a pre-tax rate that reftecls current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the nsks
specific 10 ihe liability. Where dgiscounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the p ge of time is recognised as
interest and similar charges.

{eases

The Group as lessee - finance leases

An asset and cormesponding liability are recognised for leasing agreements that transfer to the Company substantially aff of
the risks and rewards incidental to ownarghip (“finance jeases”). The amouni capitalised is the fair value of the leased asset
or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments payable during the iease term, both detarmined at inception of
the lease. Lease payments are treated as consisting of capital and interest elements. The interest is charged to profit or loss
50 as to produce @ constant periodic rate of interest an the remaining balanice of the liability. Cantingant rents are expensed
as incurred,

Capitalised leased assets are depraciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of lhe assel or the lease term.
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Pinewood Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)
for the year cnded 31 March 2019

1

Accounting policies {continued)

Leases {continued)

The Group as lessee - operaling leases

All other leases are operating jeases and the annual rentals are charged to profit or loss on a straight line basis over the
lease term. Rent free periods or other incentives received for entefing into an operating lease are accounted for as a
reduction 10 the expense and are recognised, on a siraight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lassor - operating leases

Rental income from assets feased under operating leases is recognised on a straightine basis over the term of the lease as
Media Services turnover. Renl free periods or ather incentives given to the lessee are accounted for as a reduction to the
renial income and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Significant ting judg 15, esti and assumptions
The preparstion of the Group’s financial statements requires management 10 make judgements, estimates and agsumptions
that affecl reported amounts at the end of the year.

There are no critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations {which are dealt with separately below}, that the
Directors have made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The key assumptions canceming the fulure
and other key sources of eslimation uncertainty at the reporting date are:

Significant accounting estimates

Fair value of investment in PMBS Holdings Limited

The Group's investment in the equity and lpan notes of PMBS Holdings Limited is hekd at fair value of £1.7 million (2018:
£1.7 million ) and £2.3 million (2018: £2.7 mitlion}), respectively. The Group was issued equity and loan netes equal to a 15%
shane of the debt and equity of PMBS Haoldings Limited when the initial investment was made. At each reporting date
management make an estimate of the fair value of both the value of the loan notes and the valua of the equity Investmant.

In determining \he fair value of the loan notes management review the future cash flows attributable to those loan notes, and
in determining the fair value of the equity holding management perform a value in use exercise, using a discounted cashfiow
model. The key inpuls in respect of the discounted cashfiow model are the discount factar, the projected annual cashftows
and the annual growth factor applied. In the case of the loan notes, these are interest bearing at 8% per annum and
management considers this 10 be a market rate of interest and as such are discounted at that rate. Further detsils are
inciuded in Note 16.

An adverse movement of 10% points on the discount factor, or @ 50% reduction on the annual cashflows of PMBS, when
applled to the equity would result in an impairment, and couks result in the recoverability of the loan notes being considered
doubtful.

5108 liability

In order to facilitate the construction of Pinewood East, the Group entered into a Section 108 agreemsnt with
Buckinghamshire County Council. Under this agreement the Group must pay for traffic improvaments at the Iver Heath Five
Points roundabout. These improvements, the implemeniation of which the Group is currently in discussion with
Buckinghamshire County Council, have been estimated and capitalised at cost. Included in both accruals and the gross cost
of plant, property and equipment is an estimate of £4.0 million (2018: £4.0 million), relating to this agreement. Tha capitalised
gross cost is being depraciated over 50 years and has a remaining NBV of £3.8 million (2018: £3.9 million).

Atfanta foint veniure

The Group’s investment in the Atlanta Joint Venture is accounted for using the equity accounting method. Management has
performed an impairment review of the asset, calcutating a value in use through application of a discounted cashitow model.
Key inpuls into the model are the expected levels of occupancy of the studio space, the price and the discount factor applied.
The assumptions applied to lhese faclors support the carrying value of the assel. A movement in these factors may have an
impact on that value. The carmrying value of the invesiment at 31 March 2019 was £13.3 million (2018: £11.0 million). There
are no indicators of impaiment.

Significant sccounting judgements

Fixed asset useful economic lives.

The Group has fixed assets hefd at amortised cost, the total cost of which is £350.8 million at 31 March 2019 (2018: £309.3
million). Accumulated depreciation is £84.0 million (2018; £75.8 million) and the charge for the period is £8.7 million {2018:
£8.8 million), If the average useful economic life of the assets was reduced by 15% the charge would increase by £1.5
million.

Other estimates. assumptions arnd judgements are applied by the Group. These inciude, but are nol limited to, accruals and
provisions for impairments of assels. These estimates, assumptions and judgaments are also evaluated on a continua! basis
but are not significant.
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2

Turnover and segment information
Turnover by aperating segment

The Group identifies ils operating segments based on a combination of factors, intluding the nature and type of service
proviged and differences in reguiatary environment. Operating segments are aggregated where there is a high degree of
consistency across these faclors, and the segments have similar economic characteristics. Operating segments are reported
in @ manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operaling decision maker.

The Group has determined it has two repontable segmenis, Media Services, which provides studio and refated services to
the film, television and wider creative indusiries, and Media Invesiment, which provides content invesiment and production
services, principally tq the flm industry.

Segment data for the year ended 31 March 201% and 2018 is presenied below:

2019 2018

£000 £'000
Tumaover by segment
Media services 85,928 79,979
Media invesiment - 1.973
Total segmental tumover 85,928 81,952
Intersegment elimination - (289)
Group turnover 55,828 47,663

In line with its strategy to focus on the core business, in 2017 the Group ceased certain activities, namely, the Media
Investment segment aclivittes and Pinewood Creative and sold its entire interesl in the Pinewocd TV joint venture.

The ceased Media Investment activities do not meet the definition of discontinued operations as they have not been
disposed of and certain legacy batances remain at the reporting date.

Tumaver by geographical region

Tumover continues to arise predominantly in the United Kingdom, being the Group’s country of demicie, with lumover from
the Group's international activity representing 3.6% (2018 3.3%).

2019 2018

£000 £'000
United Kingdom 82,865 768,975
Notth Amenca 2445 1.308
Asia 329 1,028
Rest of the World 288 352
05,525 B1.563

Non current assets by geographical region

The Group's interest in joint ventures with a carrying value of £13.3 million {2018: £11.0 million) is domiciled outside the UK,
see nole 8. There are also items of pruperty, plant and equipment with a carrying vafue of £0.2 million (2018: £n#} held
outside the UK.

Tumovaer by major customers

Turnover from one Media Servicas customer, operating through several separate subsidiaries, of £37.9 million (year ending

31 March 2018: £35.7 million) was recognised in the year. No other single customer contributed 10% or mora of the Groups
turnover in either 2018 or 2019.
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2 Turnover and segment information (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2019

Year ended 3t March 2018

Med|a Media Media
Services Investment Totat Services Media Investment Tatal
Notes £°000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Tumgver 85,928 - 85,928 79,690 1.973 81,663
Cost of sales (40,956) - (40,956} (41,367) {1,566) (42,933)
Gross profit 44972 - 44 972 38,323 407 38,730
Distribution casts {1,717} - (1,717) {2,118} - {2,118}
Administrative expenses
Recuming activities (7,388) - (7,388) {6,356) (1.312} {7,868}
-Exceptional items 3 {873) - (873) 549 o 549
Total administrative expenses {8,261) - (8,261) (5,807} {1.312) 7,119)
Operating profit{loss) 4 34,594 - 34,954 30,398 (805} 29,483
Comprising:
Opetaling profit(loss) from: .
Media Services activities before
exceptional items . 35,867 - 35,867 29,848 - 29,849
Media Investment - FPCs - - - - (257) (257')i
Media Investmant - other activities - - - - (648) (648)
Excaptional items 3 (873) - (873) 549 - 549
34,994 - 34,954 30,388 {905) 29,493 |
Income from participating
interests 8 {1,414) - (1,414} 3,064 - 3,064
Other interest recaivable
and similar income ] 5679 - 5679 3973 - 3773
Interest payabie and
similar gxpenses 10 (11,879} . (11.879) {6.067) - (6.067)
Profit/(loss) on ordinary 27,380 - 27,380 31,168 (805) 30,263
Tax on profit!{loss) an
ordinary activities 11 {6,059) - {6,053) (6.162) 257 (5,905}
Profiti{loss} on ordinary
activities after taxation 21,321 - 21,321 25,006 (648) 24,358
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3

Exceptional items of {incomellexpense

2019 2018
£'000 £000
Release of rent free accrual - {912)
Raesltructuring and management consullancy 873 823

PMBS Holdings Limited - gnﬁﬂi
873

Relsase of rent frae accrual

Pinewood Studio Wales signed an agreement for iease for the Welsh Studios on 16 July 2014. The agreement was for a 15
year lease with 2 years rent free. In line with accounting convention Pinewood accrued the applicable proportion of the full
rent during this renl free period. Following the decision 10 terminate the lease on the Welsh Studios this rent is no langer
payable and was reloased as an exceptional income during the year ended 31 March 2018.

Restructuring and management consuffancy

Restructuring rearganisation costs of £0.9 million (year ended 31 March 2018; £0.8 million) relate to a performance
improvement review, streamlining and ¢hanges o the managemen structure, 35 well as coys in relation to Pinewood Media
Guarantors Limited and the disposa) of Pinewood Television Limited on 26 September 2017.

PMBS Holdings Limitad

The Group has @ 15% interest in PMBS Holdings Limitad. The Group reviewed the carrying value Of its inierest in the equity
and loan notes al the 31 March 2019, The fair value gain recorded in the period ended 31 March 2018 in respect of the
equity and loan notes was £nil (2018: £0.5 milkion).

Operating profit

2019 2018
Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting): £'000 £000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 8,707 8,811
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 952 54
Operating lease payments ’ 957 1,224
Amortisation of goodwill 560 560
Nel foreign exchange gains (97) {18)

Depreciation and amenisation charges are included within cost of sales on the Stalement of Comprehensive Income.

Auditor's remuneration

2019 2018
The analysis of audiior's remuneration is as follows: £°000 £000
Fees payable 16 Group's auditor for the audit of Parent
Company and Group flnancial statements 50 48
Fees payable 10 the Company’s auditor and its associates
for the audit of the Company’s subsidiares 140 130
Total audit fees 190 178
Fees payable 1o the Group's awditor and its agsociates
for other services:
Othear gssurance services - 297
Total fees for other services - 297
Total fees ) 950 475
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6

Staff costs and numbers
Staff costs including Directors

Salaries

Social security costs
Pension casts

Lang term incentive plan
Other employee benefits

Average monthly number of employees,
including Executive Directors:

Management
Cperational
Administration
Executive
Technicat
Sales

Directors’ emoluments

Salaries

Pension costs

Compensation for loss of office
Other employes benefits

219
£900

10,792
1,090
752

276

12,910

2019
numbers

9
89
Fig

3

108
25

261

2019
£°000

451
485
241
11

749

2018
£000

12,507
1,305
910

3

307

15,032

2018
numbers

20
20
36
5
112
27

290

2018
£000

551
54

18
6§23

The number of Directors to whom retirement benefits are accuing under defined contribulion schemes was 2 (2018: 3).

The emoluments of the highest paid Director were £453,000 which includes £241,017 in respect of compensation for loss of
office (2018: E308,000); pansiuns contributions were £20,000 (2018: £20,000).

The Directars &re considered to be the only key management personnel.

Mo share options have been held by any Directors in the period.

Amounts paid to third parties in relation 1o Directors sarvices in the period are £0.3 million {2018: £0.3 million).
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8 Interests in joint ventures

As at 31 March 2019 and at 31 March 2018, the Group had interésts in the following joint ventures:

Principal
place of % voting

Joint Venture Name business % equity interest rights
Pinewoaod Atlanta LLC USA 40 50
PAS Heldings Fayette LLC USA 40 50
"PAS" - collectively, Pingwood Atlanta LLC and PAS Holdings Fayette
"PTV*" - Pinewood Television Limited
Registered office address details are included in Note 5 to the Parent Company financial 1.
2019 PAS Total

£000 £'000
Equity 13.308 13,308
Loan note - -
Total investment 13,308 13,308
Less: share of losses - -
Net investment 14,308 13,308
Non-current assets 97.709 97,709
Currenl assels 4,074 4,074
Non-cureent liabilities {non-recourse) (56.199) {56,199)
Current liabilities (4.646) (4,646)
Net assets , , &
Tumover 9,968 9,968
Expenzes (13,567) {13,567
Loss [3,559) [3.555]
Group share of foss
2018 PAS PTV Total

£'000 £'000 £'000
Equity 10,511 - 10,511
Loan note 460 - 460
Total investment 10,971 - 10,871
Less: share of Ipsses - - -
Nat investment 0,971 - 10,571
Non-current assets 93,421 - 93,421
Current assals - 2,412 - 2,412
Non-current kiabilities (non-tecourse) (56,345) - (56.345)
Current liabifities [5.462) - 15,462)
Net assets 34, - 34,026
Turnover 21,520 58 21,578
Expenses (14,066) (481) {14.547)
Profit/(loss) after tax g |

3,155 {81 064

Group share of profit/(loss) after tax

The Group disposed of their 50% equity interest in Pinewood Television Limited on 26 September 2017 for £nil

consideration.

The Group's interests in joint ventures at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 was as follows:

As at 31 March 2018

Shara of foss from joint vanture
Investment in joint ventures
Fareign currency movement

 As at 31 March 2019

27



Pinewood Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2019

10

1

Interests in joint ventures (continued)

The value of the joint veniure in Pinewood Atlanta LLC and PAS Holdings Fayette LLC (collectively "PAS") is shown grass of
taxation, which has been presented separately on the statement of financial position,

PAS is @ partnership in the US and therefore the pariners are responsible for 1ax charges in relation to the entity,

Interest receivable and similar income

On financial assets measured al amortised cosi:
Interest receivable from joint ventures

Loan interest receivable

Bank interest receivable

On financial assets measured al fair vaive!
Loan interest receivable
Fair value movements of dervative financial instrumeris

Interest payable and similar charges

On financial instruments measured al amortised cosl:
Bank loan and overdeaft interest

Loan interast payable

Finance fee amortisation

On financial instruments measured al fair value:
Interest rate hedging
Fair value mavements of derivative financial instruments

Not on financial instruments:
Finance lease interest
Other interest paid

Tax on profit on ordinary activities

(a} Analysis of charge for the year:

Current tax:

UK corporation tax charge

Amounis payable for Group tax loss relief
Foreign corporation tax

Foreign tax suffered

UK film tax relief

Double taxation credit

Asmounts under provided in previous years

Deferred tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences

Effect of change in deferred tax rates
Amounts {under)/over provided in previous years

Tax charge in the Group
comprehensive income statement

28

2019
£'000

24
5,325
102
5,451

228

5,679

2019
£°000

83
10,246

10,729

639
425
1,064

60
26
86
11,879

2019
£'000

5326

1,020

36

B1
(14)
50)
j415!

124

(49
75

6,059

2018
£000

30
1,781
56

1.667

1,906
3,773

2018
E'000

1.683
3,042

583

B13
813
90

— 9
B.067

2018
£'000

3964
1,840
727
318

(257)

(24)
352
5.016

208

319

a1y

5,805
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1

Tax on profit on ordinary activities {continued)

{b) Factors affecting current taxation for the year:

Profit on ordinary activities before tax

Profil on ordinary activities mulkiiplied by the standard rate
of corporation tax in the UK of 19% (2018: 19%)

Adjustments in respect of:

UK Film tax relief

Corparation tax overpravided in previous years
Delemred tax overprovided in previous years
Non-allgwable depreciation on buildings
Other non-altowable expenses

Unrelieved tax losses

Double 1axation relief

Overseas tax at different rales

Group relief

Amounts payable for group tax relief

Land remediation relief

Deferrad tax - effect of taxation rate change
Other adjustmants

(c}] Deferred tax

Deferred tax relates Lo the following:

Group comprehensive statement of incoms:
Deferred tax credit arising on:

Accelerated capital alk

Shor term temporary differences

Tax kosses

Net deferred tax (creditycharge

Statement of financial position:

Accelerated capital allowances
Short term temporary differences
Tax losses

Fair value adjustment in respect of SSPF acquisition

Net deferved tax liability

2019 2018
£'000 £000
27,380 30,263
5,202 5,750
(14) (257)
(442) (352)
{49) (319)
635 661
332 21
545 (32)
(60) (224)
{116) 564
{1,020 {1.840)
1,020 1.840
- 3)
9} 5
25 9
6,059 5,905
2618 2018
£'000 £000
75 75
- (230)
- 44
75 511 1 E
Charged to
At 31 March income Forex At 31 March
2015 statement 2019
£'000 £'000 E'000 £000
3676 75 - 3,751
(858) - 43 (853)
335 - - 335
3.115 75 43 3,233

The defermed iax assets are shawn net against the non-cument defered tax liability in the statement of financial position.

A reduction (o the main rate of UK corporation tax (0 from 18% to 17% has been enacted and is effective from 1 Aprit 2020,
was enacled in the previous financial year. Therefore, deferred lax balances have been calculated at 17% {2018: 17%).
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12 Dividends

2019 2018
£000 £000
2019 Final dividend paid at £nil per share {2018: 20.8p) - 11,950
- 11,950
13 Intangible assets
Software Goodwitl Total
£'000 E'000 £'000
Cost
At 31 March 2018 - 5,604 5,604
Adgditions 1,258 - 1,258
At 31 March 2019 1,258 5,604 6,862
Amortisation
At 31 March 2018 - 1,680 1,680
Provided during year - 560 560
At 31 March 2019 - 2,240 2,240
Net book value
At31 March 2019 1,258 3,364 4622
At 31 March 2018 hd 3,824 3,924

Goodwill has been acquired through business combinations and has been allocated to the Group's Media Services cash-

genherating unil.

Fallowing a review for indicators of impairment at the reponting date, il was determined that there were no indicators that the

carrying value exceaded the recoverable amount.

Sofware relates to an asset under the course of construction and as such is not baing amortised,

14  Property, plant and equipment

Lease-hold Fixtures,
Freehold land improve-  fittings and Assets under
and buildings ments equipment construction Total
£900 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost
At 31 March 2018 262,959 479 44 831 1,303 309,282
Additions 11,055 - 2,168 29819 43,142
Reclassification {13} - - 13 .
Disposals (1.033} {179) (378! - {1,590
Al 31 March 2019 272,978 - | 31,230 X
Deprociation
At 31 March 2018 44,730 26 31,085 - 75,841
Pravided during year 6,124 [ 2,517 - 8,707
Disposals 354) {32) (204) - {590)
At 31 March 2019 555% - 33,458 - 83,955 _
Net book value
At 31 March 2019 222,478 - 13,163 31,235 266,876
At 31 March 2018 218,239 163 13,746 1,303 233,441

Assets under construction at 31 March 2019 and 2018 relate to costs capitalised in respect of the development of Pinewood
East. These are noi deprecialed until the development is available for use. Phase One of the development became

opérational on 30 June 2016.
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14 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The Group's [ong-term foan is secured by a floating charge over the Group’s assefs.

Included within Fixtures, fittings and equipment are assets held under finance leases with a nat book value of £2,298,000
{2018; £2,734,000) and deprecialion charged in the year of £436,000 (2018: £514,000).

15  Other investments

£'000
At 31 March 2018 1,680
Revaluatian -
At 21 March 2019 1,680
Fair value
At 31 March 2019 1,680
At 31 March 2018 1,680

Country of

Company name Principal Activity incorporation % equity interest
PMBS Holdings Limited Holding company United Kingdom X 15.0%
POP Global Limited Fitm IT services United Kingdom 12.5%

PMBS Holdings Limiteg owns 100% of Pinewood MBS Lighting Limited, a company that has an exclusive agreemant to
provide Lighting facililies at the Group's UX facilities.

The registercd office of PMBS Holding Limited is: Pinewood Studios, Pinewoed Road, lver Heath, Buckinghamshire, SLO
ONH.

The registered office of POP Global Limited is: Tea Building, 56 Shoreditch High Street, London, E1 6JJ.
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16

17

Financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss

The carrying value of the Group's financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss at 31 March 2019 were:

2019 2018
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss: £'000 £000
Qther investments (Note 15) 1,680 1,680
Loan notes receivable (Note 17) 2,336 2,738
Fair value at 31 March 4,016 4,418

2019 2018
Financial liabilities measured af fair vailue through profit or loss: £'000 £000
Derivatives {Nole 22) 2,206 1,781
Fair value at 31 March 2,206 1,781

Total gainsl{losses) on financial instruments held at fair value through profit and loss on the group statement of
comprehensive income were as follows:

2019 2018

£000 £000
Other investments {Note 15) - 460
- Darivatives {Note 22} {425) 1.908
Total {losses)/gains (425) 2,366

Other investments (Equity)

The fair value of the equity has been calculated by using a discounted cashflow model. The key inputs in respect of the
discounted cashflow model are the discount facior of 10.6%. deemed to be a market rate refleciing the risks associated with
the asset, the projected annual cash flows and a terminal growth rate of 1.3%.

L.oan notes receivable

The fair value calculations for the loan use eight year income projections and assume an 8% coupon on the loan is rolled into
the loan balance. The par value of the loan notes is £2.3 milkon and the fair value exercise with the assumptions noted
below results in a fair value that is in line with this par value. The key assumplions used in the value in use caiculations are:

Discount rate
The discount rate reflects the curment market assessment of the risks specific to the financial instrurenl. The discount rale
was calculated using the Group’s cost of debt, The discount rate used for the year ended 31 March 2019 is 8% (2018; 8%).

Income from operations
Income projections are fixed using an interest coupon of 8% on the loan notes,

Trade and other receivables

2019 2018
£000 £000
Amount falling due within one year:
Trade recelvables - Media services 9,096 21,118
Trade receivables - Film production companies 109 105
Prepayments and other receivables 2,615 2638
Loan notes receivable 2,336 2,738
14,156 26,589
Amount falling due after more than one year:
Loans due from parent undertakings 134,369 128,045
134,369 128,045
148,525 355,644

Loan notes receivable of £2,336,000 (2018: £2,738,000) are due for repayment by 1 January 2025. Interest, which is rolled
up. is charged at 8% and is payabie in June and December each year.

Following management's review of assets for impairment, trade receivables above are stated nel of a provision of £606,000
(2018: £777,000) against bad debts. In the year ended 31 March 2018 amounts of £130,000 (2018: £424,000) were charged
lo the income statement and are included within administrative expenses in respect of bad debt. The movement on the
grovision of £171,000 (2018: £418,000) netted off with bad debt write offs of £331,000 {2018: £6,000) within the year.

Loans due from parent underakings are due for repayment on 1 December 2023 and cany interest charged at 4.05% (2018:
4.05%).
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18 GCash and cash equivalents
Included within the cash and cash equivalents batance per the statement of financial pesition at the reporting date are
amounts unavailable for general use. These amounis relate 10 funds reserved solely for use in the production of specific
Media Investmant Film produclion company operations,
2019 2018
£000 £4900
Cash available for general use 39,804 42,653
Restricteq cash and cash equivalents. 110 390
Net cash and cash equivalents 39,914 43,043
19  Share capital
2019 2013
issued, called up and fully paid £'000 £'000
57,409,926 Ordinary shares of 10p each 5,741 5,741
The Ordinary shares, which carry no right to fixed income, €ach carry the right 1o one voie al general meetings of the
Company.
20 Reserves
Share premium
Consideration received for shares issued above their nominal value net of ransaction costs.
Other reserves
Other reserves represant Capital redemption reserve £135,000 and Merger reserve £348,000.
Capital redemption reserve
The capital redemption reserve represenis amounts reserved in accondance with section 733 of the Companies Act 2006
relating to the cancellation of shares.
Merger reserve
©n acquiring Shepperton Studios Limited the Company issued ordinary shares as part of the consideration. Merger reliet
was laken in accorgance with Section 131 of the Companies Act 1985 (since succeeded by Section 612 of Companies Act
2006), and hence £348,000 was credited to the merger reserve.
Translation reserve
Cumulative effact of the effect of foreign currency translation of gperations wilh & functional curmency other than Stering in
line with the Group's fareign currency translation accounting policy.
Retained eamings
Cumutative profii and loss net of distributions to owners.
21 Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Maturity 2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Current Borrowings
Asset financing 5 November 2019 171 -
171 -
Non-Current Borrowings
Revolving credit facility {i} 1June 2023 - -
Asset inancing 5 November 2019 - 724
Loan notes (i} 1 December 2023 247,945 246.681
Non-current drawn loan facilities 247,945 247,805
Secured bank loan arrangerent cosls {1,268} (1,282)

246677 246,123

Total current and non-currént interest-bearing loans
and borrowings 246,848 246,123
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Fil

Interest bearing loans and borrowings (continued)

The effective interest rates of the above loans and borrowings are: (i) Revolving credit facility - LIBOR plus variable margin;
(ii) Loan notes - 4.28%.

On 13 December 2017, a refinancing of the Group was completed. At this date, the Group's exisling drawn senior facilities,
which were £97.5 million, were repaid in full and £250 million of new 3.75% Senior Secured Notes due 1 December 2023
were issved. Pinewood Group Limited advanced a £127.5 million loan on to its Parent. At the reporting date of 31 March
2019, the principat balance of £127.5 million was still outstanding and £6.9 million (2018: £1.5 milion) of interest accrued on
the balance is included within receivables due after maore than one year.

On 13 December 2017, the Group completed a super senior revolving credit fadility of £50 million which is available to draw
down until 1 May 2023 wilh Barciays Bank plc, Credit Suisse AG London Branch, HSBC Bank plc and Lioyds Bank pic. The
Group terminated its existing £35 million multi-=currency revolving credit facility and its £5 million averdraft facility,

Directly attributable costs of £6.4 million were recognised at the inception of the £250 million loan notes and are being
amortised as pan of the effective interest rate mathod in accordance with the Group's accounting poficy.

These facilities are secured on certain of the principal assats of the Group.

Asset financing facility

The asset financing facility comprises of both a sleriing chattet morigage facility and a finance lease facifity which are over a
fixed term with fixed monthly payments and are secured over identifiable assets of an equal value. These assets are
classified as ‘Fixtures, fittings and equipment’ within 'Property, piant and equipment’ in the stalement of financial pasition.

Borrowing facitiies

The available but undrawn committad facilities are as follows:

At 31 March 2019: Within 1 year 14 years 5+ years Total
£900 £000 £000 £'000

Facilities:

Revolving credit facility - 50,000 - 50,000

Assel financing facility 171 - - 174

Loan noles - 250,000 - 250,000

Total facilities 171 300,000 - 300,171

Drawn loans:
Revolving credit facility

Asset financing facility {171 - - (171)
Loan notes - {250,000) - {250,000
Total drawn loans {171} (250,000) - {250,171
Undrawn facilities:
Revaolving credit facility - 50,000 - 50.000
Asset financing facility - - - -
Loan notes - - - -
Undrawn committed facilities - 50,000 - 50,000
At 31 March 2018: Within 1 year 1-4 years S+ years Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £000
Facifities:
Revalving credit facility - - 50,000 50,000
Asset Tnancing facility 559 165 - 724
Loan notes - - 250,000 250,000
Total facilities 559 165 300,000 300,724
Drawn loans:
Revolving credit facility - - - -
Asset financing facility (559) (165} - {724)
Loan notes - - {250,000} (250,000)
Total drawn loans (559) {165) (250,000)  (250,724)
Undrawn facilities:
Revolving credit facility - - 50,000 50,000
Agset financing facitity - - - -
Loan notes - - - -
Undrawn committed facilities - - 50,000 50,000
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Derivative financial instruments

The Group's interest rale swaps are recagnised as derivative financiai instruments. Fair value movements are recognised in
the income statement within interest receivable and simitar income.

2019 2018
£'000 £000
Financial liabilities carried at fair value:
Non-current derivative financial instrument liabilities 2,206 1,781
2,206 1,781

interest rate swaps
To minimise the volatility in cash flows from a change in LIBOR, the Group held interes! rate swaps designated as hedges

against drawn debt obligations as detailed below.

2019 2018
Effactive interast rate % Maturity £000 £000
2.00% + variabte margln 30 April 2025 25,000 25,000
2.08% + variable margin 30 April 2022 25,000 25.000

50,000 50,000

The Group's economic hedges of interest rate risk are treated as derivative financial instruments and fair value movements
are recognised in the income statement.

The interest swap finance costs are charged to the income statement when the swap is payable. The swaps are payable on
a quarterly basis.

Trade and other payables
2% 2018
£°000 £000
Trade payables - Media services 2,048 3,345
Trade payables - Film production companies 517 1,753
Corporation tax payable 1,967 794
Value added tax 1,385 2,802
Other payables 635 942
Accruals 4,807 4,842
Amounts due to parent company 4,078 3,124
Capitzl expenditure related payables 9,753 4,536
Deferred royalty 669 685
Deferred income - Media services 25,865 25,802
Defemed income - Film production companies 37 a7
51,561 48,762

Amounts due to parent company bear interest at 4.05% (2018: 4.05%) and have no fixed repayment terms.
No fixed sacurity has been given in raspect of any of the items listed above.

AL 31 March 2019, the Group had iotal capital commitments contracted for, but not provided in the financial statements, of
£26,943,000 {2018: £nil) in respect of development expenses arising from Pinewood East.
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25

Fi4

Cbligations under leases

Op ing | as

Future minimum rentals payable on the Group’s non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2018
are as follows:

2019 2018
£'000 £000

Within one year 733 470
After one year but nat more than five years 2,249 1,490
2,982 1,960

Operating leases as fessor
Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases as ai 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 are as

follows:

2019 2018

£'000 £400

Within one year - 9.975
Aftar one year bul not more than five years 22,544 33.me
22,544 42,993

Rentals for the year ended 31 March 2020 of ¢. £10.5 million have been received and included within deferred income, and
consequently are net included in the disclosure above.

Finance feases as lessee
Obligations under finance leases are secured on the assets to which they relale. The future minimum lease payments as at

31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 are as follows:

2019 2018

£'000 £000

Within one year 173 580
After one year but not more than five years - 167
173 747

Related party transactions

The Group has elected not to disciose related parly transactions entered into between wholly owned members of its wider
group in accondance with paragraph 33.1A of FRS 102.
The Group's subsidiary undartakings are listed in Note 5 to the Parent Company financial statements.

A number of the Group's subsidiary undertakings have claimed examption from audit, these are listed in Note 5 ta the Parent
Company financial statements.

Transactions between the Group and its related parties are disclosed below:

2019 . 2018

£000 £000
Sales to joinlty conlrolled entities 2,330 . 814
Purchases from jointly cantrolled entities 628 411
Amounts owed to jointly controlled enlities 46 6
Amounts owed by jointly controlled entities . ase 564

Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

The immediate parent is Picture Holkdco Limited, a company incorporated in England 8 Wales. The ulimate paremt
undertaking and controlling party is PW Real Estate Fund !l GP Limited, in its capacity as General Partner of PW Real
Estata Fund Il LP. .

The registered office address of Picture Holdeo Limited is 4th Floor, 18 St. Swithin's Lane, London, EC4N 8AD. Picture
Holdco Limited is the only parent of Pinewood Group Limited which prepares consolidated financial statements, and these
will be publicly availabie at Companies House.

Events after the 'reporﬁng date

In July 2019, the Group announced a multi-year deal with Netflix, which sees Netflix creating a dedicated production hub,
featuring 14 sound stages, workshops and offices at Sheppenon Sludios. The contract will deliver a higher occupancy fevel

for the Group.

In July 2019, the Group announced that its collaboration with Pinewood Iskandar Malaysia Studios ended by mutual
agreement, with the initia) objactives of the collaboration achleved, including the development of studios in Mafaysia. The
studio will be known as Iskandar Malaysia Studios.
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Notes
Assets
Non current assets
Investments &
Intangible assets 6
Deferrad tax asset
Trade and other receivables 7
Cumrent assets
Trade and other receivables 7

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity and llabllities

Share capital 8
Share premium

Capital redemplion reserve

Merger reserve

Translation reserve

Relained eamings

Total equity

Non-current labllitles

Intarest baaring loans and borrowings 9
Darivative financial instn 1 10
Current lfabilities

interast bearing loans and borrowings 8
Trade and other payables 11

Total {labliitles
Total equity and (iablilities

2018

£'000

32,008
1,258

134,369
168,833

257,287
23,653
280,940

449,573

5,741
76,608
135
48
1,243
8,430
92,602

245,686
2,206
248,892

Ea]
107,908

T 108,679
356,971

A9,573

2018
as restated
E'000

33,006

128
129,045
162,179

266,921
32,472
259,393

BIBTZ

5741
76,686
135
M8
887
9,709
93,516

249,442
1.781

251,223

116,833
116,833

368,056
451,572

As permitied by section 408(4) of the Companies Act 2006, ihe Company has elected not to present its own income statement for

the year, The loss of the Company for the year was £1,270,000 (2018: profit as restated of £3,768,000).

The financial statements of Pinewood Group Limited (registered number. 03888552) were approved and authorised for issue by

the Board of Directors on 23 July 2018. They were signed on its behalf by.

S R

Barbara Inskip
Director

The notes on pages 38 ta 46 form part of these financial statements.
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for the year ended 31 March 2019 :

Translation
Share capital Share premium reserve Otherreserves  Retained earnings  Total aquity
Nates £000 £7000 £'000 £7000 £900 £700
At 01 April 2018 as restated 5741 76,696 B87 483 9.709 93,516
Loss for the year - - - - {1,270) {1,270}
Transiation reserve movement - - 356 - - 356
Total comprehensive loss for the
year - - as6 - (1.270) {914}
Equity dividends - - - - - -
At 31 March 2019 5,741 76,696 7,243 433 8,430 92,602
AL 01 April 2017 5,741 76,696 1,340 483 17,891 102,151
Brofit for the year as
testated 2 - - - - 3,768 3.768
Translation reserve movement - - [453) - - (453}
Total comprehensive income for
the year as restatec - - {453) - 3,768 3,315
Equity dividends - - - - {11,850} {11.850)
At 31 March 2018 as restated 5,741 76,606 837 483 9,709 93,518

The notes on pages 39 to 46 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2019

Pinewood Group Limited ("the Company”) is a private company limited by shares incorporated and domiciled in England. The
registered office is localed at Pinewoad Studios, Pinewooed Road, Iver Heath, Buckinghamshire, SL0 ONH,

1

Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies are Summarised below. They have all been applied consistently throughout the current year
and prior ygar.

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 The Financial Reporling Standard applicable in
the UK and Republic of lreiand’ ("FRS 162"} and the requirements of the Companies Act 2008, including the provisions of the
Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups {Accounts and Reports) Reguiations 2008, and under historical cost
convention, modified 10 include certain financial instruments at fair value.

The full financial statements have been prepared with early adoption of the FRS 102 Triennial Review 2017 amendments in
full. This is the first sex of financial statements where the Trienniai Review amendments have been adopted and the
application date is therefore 1 April 2017. There have been no changes to amounts presanied in respect of transactions or
balances in any of the main statements as a resull of adoption of 1he changes, but certain disclosures have been updated in
ling with the new requirements.

This company is a qualifying entity for the purposes af FRS 102, being a member of a group where the parent of that group
prepares publicly available consclidated financial statements, including this company, which are inlended to give a true and
fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the group. The company has therefore laken
advantage of exempticns from the foliowing disclosure requirgments:

» Section 4 ‘Statemant of Financial Pasition” — Reconciliation of the opening and closing number of shares,

+ Section 7 "Statement of Cash Flows' — Presentation of a statement of cash flow and related notes and disclosures;

- Section 11 'Basic Financia! Instruments’ and Section 12 'Other Financial instrument Issues' ~ Carrying amounts, intérest
incomelexpense and net gainsflosses for each category of financial instrument;, basis of determining fair values, details of
coliateral, details of hedges, hedging fair value changes recognised in profit o Ioss and in other comprehensive incoma;

» Section 33 "Related Party Di res’ — Comp ion for key management personnel.

The financial statements of the company are consofidated in the finangial statemenis on pages 12 (o 36.

Going concem :

in assessing the going concem basis, the Direclors consideres the Company's buginess activilies, the financial posilion of
the Company and the Company’s financial risk management objectives and policies. The Company meets its day-to-day
working capilal requirements through its bank taciities. The Comipdry's (wecasts and projections, toking ageount of
reasonably possible changes in trading performance, economic uncertainty and Brexit, show that the Company will be abie
o operate within the level of its curent facifites. The Directors, having made approgriate enquirfas, consider that the
Company has adequate resources to continue in the operalional business for the foreseeable fulure and have therefare
continued 1o adopl the going concem basis in preparing the financial statements.

Fixed assets investments
Investmenis in subsidiaries and joint venlures are staled initially at cost. The carying values are reviewed for impairment i
events of changes in circumstances indicate the carmying vafues may not be recoverable.

intangidie assets
Intangible assets excluding goadwil, when identified. are capitalised al cost and subsequently amonised over their usaful
economic life on the foliowing bases:

The software asset is not yel in use and so is not being depreciated, accordingly. The anticipated useful life is between 5
and 10 years and will be determined at the point the software is completed and in use.

Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financiai liabiliies are recogniset when the Company becomes a party 10 the contracfua! provisions of
the instrument.

Financial liabilitiss and equity instruments are classified according to the subslance of the contractual arrangements entered
inte. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all
of s liabilities.

Financial asseis and liabilities

Al financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at transaction price {including transaction cosis), axcept for those
financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initialty measured at fair value {which is normally
the transaction price excluding transaction costs), unless the arangement constilyles a financing transaclion. !f an
arrangemant constitules a finance transaction, the financial asset or financial liability is measured at the present value of the
future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument.
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1

Accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets are derecognised when and anly when a) the contractual rights to the cash fiaws from the financial asset
expire or are setlled, b) the Group transfers to anolher parly substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, or ¢) the Group, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership, has transferred
conirol of the asset lo another party and the other party has the practical ability 10 sell the asset in its entirety lo an unrelated
thivd party and is able to exercise that abifity unilaterally and withoul needing lo impose additional restrictions on the transfer.

Financial liabilities are derecognised onty when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the fair value of proceeds received, cash or olher resources
received or receivable, net of direct issue costs.

Interast-bearing loans and barrowings

Obligations far loans and borrowings are recognised when the Company becomes party to the related contracts and are
measured initially at the fair values of consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs. After initial
recognition, interesi-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measurad at amortised cosl using the effective interest
method, allocating the interest income or inlerest expensa over the relevant period. The loan issue costs are amortised in
the income statement over the ramaining maturity of the loans at a constant carrying amount and are reviewed for changes
in circumstances that may indicate that the loans will not be held to maturity.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company has interest rate swaps 1o hedge against risks associated with interest rate flucivations. Derivatives are
initially recognised at fair value af the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair
value al each statement of financial posilion date. The Company raporis the movement in fair value through profit or toss.

The fair values of the interest rate swap contracts are determined by reference to market values for similar instrumeants.

A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset whereas a darivative with a negative (air value is
recognised as a financial liability. A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or liability if the remaining maturity of the
instrument is more than 12 months and it is not expected 1o be realised or settled within 12 months. Other derivatives are
presented as current assets or current liabilities.

- Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial stalements requires management to make jedgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect reported amounts at the reporting date.

Estimates, assumptions and judgements are applied by the Company. These include, but are not limited to, accruals and
provisions for impairments of assets. Thase estimates, assumptions and judgements are also evaluated on a continual basis
bul are not significant.

Prior period adjustment 2018 2018

as praviously reposted adjustment as restated
£000 £'000 £000

Currant assets

Trade and other receivables 259,069 7,052 265,821

Total assels 454,520 71.052 461,572

Equity and liabilities

Retained eamings 2,657 7,052 9,709

Total equity 86,464 7,052 93,516

Total equity and liabilities 454 520 7.052 351,572

{Loss)profit for the financial year 3,284 7,052 3.768

Subsequent to the signing of the company financlal statements of Pinewood Group Limited for the year ended 31 March
2018, and prior to the publication of the other entity statutory reports, the company reviewed the basis of the calculation for
ntercompany interest charges. As a result of the review it was determined that an adjustment was required, which results in
a net intercompany interest receivable adjusiment of £7,052k. Management consider this to be material, in respect of the
value, and therefore have adjusted the prior year comparatives instead of the current period.

The adjusiment has resulted in a restatement of the Company's relained earnings from £2,657k to £9,708k being the
increase of £7,052k of intercompany interest. Amounts due from subsidiary undenakings, which were disciosed within the
Trade and other receivables of £223.4 million in the prior year statement of financial position, have been restated as £230.4
miltion.
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3 Profit and loss

As permitied by section 408{4) of the Companies Act 2006. the Company has elecied not to present its own ingome
slatement for the year. The loss of the Company for the year was £1,270,000 (2018: profit as restated of £3,768,000).

4 Staff costs and numbers

2019

Staff costs including Directors ) £000
Salaries 1,212
Social secyrity costs 45
Pension costs 39
Other employee benefits 16

T 1312
Average monthly number of employees, 2019

including Executive Directors: numhers
Management 2
Administration 6
Executive 1

N

5 Investments

Cost and net book value
At 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019

2018
£'000

1,808

195
62

2,108

2018
numbers

£'000

33,006

Detaifs of investments in which the Company hoids 20% or more of the nominal value of ordinary share capital (or other

tlass of share capilal where marked °, see below) are as follows:

Company name Principal Activity
Pinewcad-Shepperton Studios Limitey'? Holding company
Pinewood PS8 Limited’ Property development
Pinswood Film Advisors Limited’ Film investment advice
Pinewood Film Advisors [W) Limited’ Film investment advice
Pinewood Studios Limited Film studio services
Shepperton Studios Limited Film studio services
Shepperton Studios (Geners! Partner) Limited Proparty investment
Pingwood Shepperon Limited Dormant

Baltray No.1 Limited Proparty investment
Baltray No.2 Limited Property investment
Sheppenon Management Limited Froparny support
Pinewood Shepperton Facilities Limited Froperty support
PSL Cansutting Limited Film services
Pinewood Studio Walas Limited Film services
Pinewood Germany Limited Dormant

Pinewood Dominican Republic Limited Film services
Pinewood Malaysia Limited Film services
Pinewood USA Inc.’ Film services
Pinewood Film Production Sludios Canada Inc.® Film services
Pinewood Production Services Canada Inc. Film services
Pinewood Films Limited Film investment
Pinewood Media Development Limited Film services
Pinewood Productions Ireland Limited Film services
Space Bear IR Designated Activity Company Film services
Pinewoed Camera Trap Limited Film production
Pinewood Riot Club Limited® Film production
Pinewood Films No, 11 Limited Film produciion
Pinewood Films No. 12 Limited Film production
Pinewood Films No, 13 Limited Film production
Pinewood Films No. 14 Limited Film production
Whare Hands Touch (FPC) Limited Film production
The Studios Unit Trust® Property investment
Shepperton Studios Property Partnership? Property investment
Pinewood Finco PLC' Financial sefvices
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Country of
incorporation
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Uniled Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Unitad Kingdom
Unlied Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Urited Kirgdom
USA

Canada
Canada

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Ireland

Ireland

United Kingdom
Uniled Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Jersey

United Kingdam
United Kingdom

% equity
interest
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
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H

Investments (continued)

Subsidiaries {continued)

'Directly held.
Investment held as follows:

o Pinewood-Shepperion Studios Limited - 17,830 ordinary shares of 5p each with a nominal vatue of
£892, and 942,700 redeemable shares of 10p each with a nominal value of £94,270, Further details
ingluded in the subsidiary financial siatements of Pinewond-Shepperton Studies Limitad.

o The Studios Unit Trusl - unils held in Jersey Property Unit Trust by Baltray No. 1 Limited and Baltray
Na. 2 Lirmited.

6 Shepperton Studics Property Partnership - Limited Partnership in which Baltray No. 1 Limited and the
Situdios Unit Trust are Limited Partners.,

3Since the reporting date, these companies have been dissclved.
“The reporting date for Pinewood USA Ing, is 31 December.
SAt the date of approval of these financial statements, this company had an active proposal to strike off.

The registered office of the subsidiaries (or local equivalent} are as follows:

o All United Kingdom subsidiaries - Pinewood Studios, Pinewood Road, Iver Heath, SLO ONH

o The Studios Unit Trust - 47 Esplanade, St. Melier, Jersey JE1 OBD

o All Irish subsidiaries - Second Floor, 10 South Anne Street, Dublin 2, Irgland

0 Pinewood USA Inc. — ¢/o Katten Munchin Rosenman LLP, 2029 Century Park East, Suite 2600, Los
Angeles, CA 90067, USA

o Pinewood Production Services Canada Inc. - 225 Commissioners Streel, Toronto, ON M4M DA1,
Canada

0 Pinewoocd Film Production Studios Canada Inc. Suite 2600, Three Bentall Centre, PO Box 49314, 585
Burrard Street, Vancouver BC, V7X 1L3, Canada

Joint ventures

As at 31 March 2019, the Company had imerests in ihe following joint ventures:

Principal

place of % voting
Company hamea business “% equity interest rights
Pinewood Atianta LLC UsA 40% 50%
PAS Holdings Fayette LLC UsSA 40% - 50%

None of the investments in joint ventures is directly held. The accaunting reference date for the two joint ventures is 31
December.

All joint venture interests are indirectly held. The registered office of Pinewood Atlanta LLC and PAS Holdings Fayette LLC is
461 Sandy Creek Road, Fayetteville, Georgia 30214, USA.

Other investments

The Group owns 15% of the share capilal of PMBS Holding Limited. PMBS Holding Limited owns 100% of Pinewcod MBS
Lighting Limited, The Company also has an indirect investment in POP Global Limited amounting to 12.5% of the share
capital. POP Global Limited owns 100% of We Got Paop Ltd.
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5

Investments (continued)

Audit exemption

Pinewood Group Limited has given stalutory guarantees against all the outstanding liabiliies of the below listed wholly-
owned subsidiaries at 31 March 2019 under Section 4794 of the Companies Acl Z006, thereby allowing thess subsidiaries to

be exempt from the annual audil requirement for the year ended 31 March 2019,

Although the Company does not anficipate the guarantees to be calied upon, the book values of the guaranteed liabilities,

excluding intragroup balances, for each relevant subsidiary al 31 March 2019 are set out below:

Company
registration Liabilities te non-
Company name number group entities
£'000
Baltray No.1 Limited 05776674 -
Baltray Na.2 Limited 05778635 -
Pinewood Carnera Trap Limited 08153323 -
Pinewcod Dominican Republic Limited 07096246 308
Pinewoad Films Limited 07660856 -
Pinewoad Films No. 13 Limited 09006529 12
Pinewoad Malaysia Limited 07074448 0
Pinewood Media Development Limited 09592018 -
Pinewood Studic Waies Limited 08863162 121
PSL Consulting Limited 08655214 35
Shepperton Management Limited 05307027 -
Shepperton Studios (General Pantner) Limited 05213009 -
Pinewood Germany Limited 07079399 -
Pinewood Sheppertan Facilities Limited 07527390 -
Pinewood Films No. 11 Limited 08865342 49
Pinewood Films No. 12 Limjted 0BBESEE8 32
Where Hands Touch (FPC) Limited 09443603 325
Intangible assets
Software Total
£'000° £700
Cost
At 31 March 2018 - -
Additions 1,258 1.258
At 31 March 2014 1,2 258
Net book value
At 31 March 2019 1,258 1,256

At 31 March 2018

Software relates to an ssset under the course of construction and as such is not being amonised.
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7 Trade and other receivables

2019 2018
as restated
£000 £000
Amount falling due within one year:
Prepayments and accrued income 59 66
Loans due from subsidiary undertakings 36,414 36,414
Amounts due from sybsidiary undenakings 220,814 230,441
257,287 266,921
Amount falling due after more than one year:
Loans due from parent undertakings 134,369 129,045
134,369 128,045
351,656 395,966

Intragroup balances are repayable on demand and interest is charged a1 4.05% (2018: 4.05%). The loans due from the
parenl company are repayable on 1 December 2023 and canry interest charged at 4.05% (2018: 4.05%). The loans due from
subsidiary undertakings are repayable on demand and interest is charged at 4.05% (2018: 4.05%).

8 Share capital

2019 2018
issued, calied up and fully paid £000 £000
57,408,926 Qrdinary shares of 10p each 5,741 5741
The Ordinary shares, which carry no right to fixed income, each carry the right to one vote al general meelings of the
Company.

9 [nterest bearing loans and borrowings
Maturity 2019 2018
£000 £'000
Current Borrowings
Assel financing 5 November 2019 17 -
171 -

Non-Current Borrowings

Asset financing 5 November 2019 - 724

Loan from subsidiary ungertaking 1 Decomber 2023 247,954 250,000

Non-current drawn loan facilities 247,954 250,724
{1,268) {1.282)

Secured bank loan arrangement costs

246,686 249,442
245,857 240,442

Total current ang non-current interest-bearing loans and borrowings

On the 13 December 2017, Pinewood Finco PLC entered into a loan agreement with its parent cormpany, Pinewood Group
Limited. The company agreed 1o loan its parent £250 million under a loan agreemant subordinated under the company’s
external dabt {as disclosed in note 12 of Pinawood Finco ple Report and Financiat Statements for the period ending 31
March 2018). The loan bears interest at the same rate as the external debt, referenced in note 12 of Pinewood Finco plc
Report and Financial Statements for the period ending 31 March 2018, 3.75%, plus a margin of 0.15% per annum {for the
administration of the external debt on bahalf of the Group) and a charge for the recovery of finance fees incurred by
Pinewood Finco pic in arranging the extarnal debl. Repayments of intarest and capital are required to be made in sufficient
time for the company 0 make onward payment o its external debt providars. As a result, the capital balance falls due for
repayment on 1 December 2023.

Details of effective interest rates, total facilities, repayments, are listed in Note 21 of the consolidated Group financial
statements accounts above.

Amounts included above which fa!l due after five years are as follows

2019 2018
£'000 £000
- 250,000

Payabie other than by ingtalments




Pinewood Group Limited

Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statemants {continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2019

10

Lk

12

Derivative financial instruments

The Company’s interest rate swaps are recognised as derivative financlal instruments. Fair value movemenis are recognised
in the income statement within interest payable and similar charges.

Further details can be found in Note 22 fo the cansolidated Group financial statements.

2019 2018
£°000 £000
Financial habilities carried at fair value.
Non-current derivative financial instrument fiabilities 2,206 1,781
25 T
Trade and other payables
2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Other creditors 2,350 1,535
Amounts due 1o parent undertakings - 75
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings 105,558 115,223
107,908 116,833

intragroup balances are repayable on demand and interest is charged at 4.05% (2018: 4.05%).

Related party transactions

The Company has el d not 1o disc! related party transactions entered into between wholly owned members of its wider
group in accordance with paragraph 33.1A of FRS 102,
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13

14

Contingent liability

The Company has cammitied to provide financial support to several of its wholly owned subsidiary undenakings in a net
current liability position to an amount as may be required to enable each subsidiary to fulfil its operational commitmants to
meet Fabifities as and when they fall due and carry on their business as a going concern. Where it is required, Pinawaod
Group Limited intends 10 extend such support for a further 12 months from the date the current commitments expire as
shown below.

Expiration date of financial
Company name support
Baltray No.1 Limited 13 December 2019
Baltray No.2 Limited 13 December 2019
Pinewood Films Limited 13 December 2019
Pingwood Media Developmenl Limited 13 December 2019
Pinewood Studio Wales Limited 13 December 2019
Pinewood Germany Limited 13 December 2019

The Company, together with cerain subsidiary undertakings had at the financial statement date granted a cross guarantee in
favour of its bankers in respect of the bank borrowings of the Group.

The guarantee was secured by a floating charge which as at 31 March 2019 was £252,377,000 (2018: £252,505,000).

The loan notes issued during the year within the financial statements of the Group are secured by fixed and floating charges
over tha trade and assets of the group headed by Picture Heldoo Limited, of which the company is a member.

Uitimate parent undertaking and controlling party

The immediate paren is Picture Holdco Limited, a company incorporaled in England and Wales. The ultimate parent
undertaking and controlling parly is PW Real Estate Fund Il GP Limited, in its capacity as General Pariner of PW Real
Estate Fund (Il LP.

The registered office address of Picture Holdco Limited is 4th Floor, 18 St. Swithin's Lane, London, ECAN BAD. Picture
Holdco Limited is the parent of the largest group for which consolidated accounts are prepared which include the results of
Pinewood Group Limited, and these will be publicly available 21 Companies House. The smabest group for which
conselidated accounts are prepared is for Pinewood Group Limited which are shown on pages 12 o 36 of these financial
statements.
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Shepperton Studios Property Partnership

General Partner's Report

The General Partner presents the annual report and audited financial statements of Shepperton Studios
Property Partnership (the 'Partnership’) for the year ended 31 March 2019.

The General Partner's report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to companies
subject to the small companies’ regime under Section 415a of the Companies Act 2008. The Partnership is
also exempt from preparing a Strategic Report under the Companies Act 2008 (Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report) Regulations 2013 as it qualifies as a small company.

Principal activities

The purpose of the Partnership is to hold the Shepperton property and perform asset management and
redevelopment activities in relation to such property, and to acquire other property to further the business with
the objective of generating investment returns from its activities.

Objectives/Strategy:

a Maximise returns to the Partners through good asset management;
o} Enhance the asset value;

o Develop new buildings where financially viable; and

o Let remaining vacant units.

Financial Position and Performance
The profit before members' remuneration charged as an expense for the financial year ended 31 March 2019,
amounted to £3.1m (31 March 2018; £2.4m).

Members' remuneration charged as an expense amounted to £2.0m (31 March 2018: £3.4m).

Key Performance Indicators
The Partners consider that the performance of the business can be assessed through the use of key
performance indicators (‘KPIs"). These are:

o] Turnover - £5.0m (31 March 2018; £4.5m).
o] Operating profit - £3.8m (31 March 2018: £3.2m).

The performance in the year to 31 March 2019 is in line with expectations of the Partners and reflects the
ongoing trading performance of the Partnership.

Going Concern

In assessing the going concern basis, the General Partner considers the Partnership’s business activities, the
financial position of the Partnership and the Partnership’s financial risk management objectives and policies.

The Partners and their respective interests in the Partnership are set out on page 2. The Partners are all
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Pinewood Group Limited, of which Picture Holdco Limited is the parent. As such
the Partnership is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group of which Pinewood Group Limited Is the parent.
The intenticn of the Partners is to dissolve the partnership within the foreseeable future. In view of this, the
Partners consider that it is not appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting. There have been
no changes to the balances recognised as a result of the change in preparation basis.



Shepperton Studios Property Partnership

General Partner's Repert (continued)

Partners and Partners’ Interests
The Partners during the year to 31 March 2019 and up to the date of signature of the financial statements,
and their interests in the equity capital and redeemabie capital at 31 March 2019 were as follows:

Equity Redeemable

Capital Capital

£'000 £'000

Baltray No.1 Limited 1 13,360
The Studios Unit Trust (resigned 16 October 2019) 1 13,360
Shepperton Studios (General Partner) Limited - 21

Baltray No.2 Limited (appointed 16 Octaber 2019) - -

Financial Risk Management

The Partnership's exposure to different types of risk is limited by the nature of its business. The Partnership’s
principal asset is investment property and the market vaiue of investment property is subject to market
conditions. The Partnership does not have a significant exposure to credit risk as receivables are mainly short
term items or balances with Group undertakings.

Events After the Reporting Date

in October 2019, the Partnership transferred the interest in its long leasehold property and associated
agreements with tenants to a Group undertaking for consideration of £53.9 million, teft outstanding on an
intercompany account. The jong leasehold property represented the Partnership's only trading asset and
accordingly, following the transfer, the Partnership ceased to trade. The Partners intend to dissoive the
Partnership following the distribution of its remaining assets.

Future Outlook
As disclosed above, the Partners intend to dissolve the Partnership following the distribution of its remaining
assets.

Disciosure of information to the Auditor

So far as the General Partner is aware at the date of approving this report, there is no relevant audit
information, being information needed by the auditor in connection with the preparation of its report, of which
the auditor is unaware. Having made enquiries of the Partnership's auditor, the General Partner confirms it
has taken ali the steps that it is obliged to take as General Partner in order to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

Deloitte |.LP are deemed to be reappointed under section 487(2) of the Companies Act 2006.

Approved by the General Partner and signed on its behalf by:

NEY

B D Inskip
For the General Partner

Date: {12, . 2O\



Shepperton Studios Property Partnership

Statement of General Partner's Responsibilities

The Partnership (Accounts) Regulations 2008 require that a qualifying partnership prepare financial
statements in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

Company law requires the General Partner to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law the General Partner has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable lawy),
including FRS 102 *The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”. Under
company law the General Partners must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Partnership and of the profit or loss of the
Partnership for that year. In preparing these financial statements, the General Partner is required to:

o] select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
o] make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

o] prepare financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the Partnership will continue in business.

The General Partner is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Partnership's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Partnership and enable the General Partner to ensure that the financial statements comply with the law.
The General Partner is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Partnership and hence for taking
reascnable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.



Shepperton Studios Property Partnership

Independent Auditor's Report
to the Partners of Shepperton Studios Property Partnership

Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements of Shepperton Studios Property Partnership (the ‘gualifying
partnership’):

- give a true and fair view of the state of the qualifying partnership’s affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of its
profit for the year then ended;

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in
the UK and Republic of [reland”; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to
qualifying partnerships.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:
» the statement of comprehensive income;
- the statement of financial pesition;
* the statement of changes in Members’ interests; and
- the related notes 1 to 16.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 *The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (1SAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the qualifying partnership in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council's (the
‘FRC’s’) Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinien.

Emphasis of matter - Financial statements prepared other than on a going concern basis

We draw attention to note 1 in the financial statements, which indicates that the financial statements have
been prepared on a basis other than that of a going concern. Our opinion is not maodified in respect of this
matter.



Shepperton Studios Property Partnership

Independent Auditor's Report
to the Partners of Shepperton Studios Property Partnership (continued)

Other information

The General Partner is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the General Partner's report, other than the financial statements and our auditer's report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a
material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Responsibilities of the General Partner

As explained more fully in the statement of General Partner's responsibilities, the General Partner is
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, and for such internal control as the General Partner determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, the General Partner is responsible for assessing the qualifying
partnership’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters retated to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the General Partner either intends to
liquidate the qualifying partnership or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes cur
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s
website at: www frc.org.uk/auditorsrespaonsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
+ the information given in the General Partner’'s report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
+ the General Partner's report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements,

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the qualifying partnership and its environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in General Partner’s report.



Shepperton Studios Property Partnership

Independent Auditor's Report
to the Partners of Shepperton Studios Property Partnership (continued)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships we are required to report in respect of
the following matters if, in our opinion:

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been

received from branches not visited by us; or

* the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

* certain disclosures of the General Partner's remuneration specified by law are not made, or

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the gualifying partnership’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the qualifying parinership’s members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the qualifying partnership and the qualifying
partnership's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

/N
Adoor B

Andrew Evans FCA (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

Reading, United Kingdom

4 Decearher 2019



Shepperton Studios Property Partnership

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 March 2019

Year ended
31 March
2019
Notes £'000
Turnover - rental income 2 5,003
Property expense (140)
Administration expenses (1,102)
Operating profit 4 3,761
Interest receivable and similar income 5 400
Interest payable and similar costs 6 (1,089)
Profit for the financial year before members'
remuneration charged as an expense 3,072
Members' remuneration charged as an expense 7 (2,045)
Profit/(loss) for the financial year available for
discretionary division among members 1,027

Year ended
31 March
2018

as restated
£'000

4,502
(185)

{1,103)

3,214

278

(1,114)

2,378

(3,405)

(1,027}

The Income Statement has been prepared on the basis that all operations are discontinued operations.

There is no other comprehensive income other than profit/(loss) for the financial year.

The notes on pages 10 ta 18 form part of these financial statements



Shepperton Studios Property Partnership

Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 March 2019

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Partners' funds and liabilities

Loans and ather debts due to members
Members' capital classified as a {iability
Other amounts

Members' other interssis

Members' capital classified as equity
Revaluation reserve

Total Partners' funds

Current liabilities
Trade and cther payables

Total liabilities

Total Partners' funds and liabilities

Notes

10
10

10

11

2019

£000

54,426

11,18¢%
764

11,953

66,378

30,552
632
31,184

5,964
5,966

37,160

29,228
29,229

66,379

2018
as restated
£'000

55,453

8,301
31

8,332

63,788

29,106
512

28,618

6,088

6,090
35,708

28,077

28,077

63,785

The financial statements of Shepperton Studios Property Partnership (registered number: LP011523) were
approved and authorised for issue by the Partners on . JQ.-.0 2. 2005 ... They were signed on its behaif by:

‘/\_g\-—m\-\é"

B D Inskip
For the General Partner

The notes on pages 10 to 18 form part of these financial statements



sjuswWelels [eoueuy asay) o ped wioy g oy | sebed uo sajou ay |

05L°2¢ relL'le ze9 Z55'0E 996's - ¥96's [4
- ¥zl - 74! {rzL) - (rzi) -
LZ0°) 201 - L20') - - - -
{og9‘L} (oe9't) - (og9'L) - - - -
SPO'Z $r0'T 0zL §Z6'1 - - - -
g02'st 819'6Z (45 901'62 060°9 - 280°9 z
- ¥ZL - 124" {reL) - #zZ1) -
(eza't) (Lzo'y - (1201} - - - -
{ozz'9} (ozz'9) - {ozz'e) - - - -
SOV'E sov'e LEL 89z°¢ - - - -
0§5'6¢ 9ge'Ee GLE 196'2E viZ'9 - Z1Z'g [4
- - - - - zi1z'9) FANA -
055°6¢ 9Le'es S/ LOB'ZE r12'9 YA - z
000.3 000.3 0003 000.3 000.3 000.3 0003 000.3
sjsaJlaju| 198q sjuncLe |lenden Aunb3z anlasal aAlasal lenden
Slaquay ol 20l Bsyo SIBqUIB |e30L anjeA lle{  UONEn|eASY Staguuay
sdaquaw Anba siaquapy

0] 8NP SJUNOLIE JaYI0 PUR SUROT

6L0Z YJEW LEIV
sJojsues}

siaquiaw Buole uosiap
ABUOREIOSID IO} de|iene Jeak [BIDUBUY 94] JO) WOId

sBumelq

asuadxe ue se pableyo uonelaunwal slaguwsapy
(pejeysal se) 8107 Y2IeW LE IV

siajsuel]

(palelsal se) siaquaw Buowe uosIap
AJBuc)319sIp 10) BigE|IBAE JBIA |BOUBUY BU) JO) 8507

sBuimelq

ssuadxe ue se pableyo uoneIRUNWAI SIBQUWIBK
(payeISad se} £10Z YIIeW LEIV

{g] =jou) sjuswisnipe [eucjISUEl]

(papodal Aisnoiaaad se) 2 L0Z Y24ew LE WY

6L0Z YdIew L pepus Jesh ay) 104
s)salaju| siaqiajy ul sabueyn jo Juswaje)g

diysiauped Apadoid soipnig uoladdayg



Shepperton Studios Property Partnership

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Shepperton Studics Property Partnership is a Partnership registered and domiciled in England. The
registered office is located at Pinewood Studios, Pinewood Road, Iver Heath, Buckinghamshire, SLO ONH.
The business address is located at Shepperton Studios, Studios Road, Shepperton, TW17 0QD.

1

Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies are summarised below. They have all been applied consistently
throughout the current year and prior year.

Accounting convention
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102

(FRS 102) and are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006 under the historical cost
convention, modified to include the revaluation of freehold properties and to include investment
properties at fair value.

The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the Parinership.
Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest £1,000.

The full financial statements have been prepared with early adoption of the FRS 102 Triennial Review
2017 amendments in full. This is the first set of financial statements where the Triennial Review
amendments have been adopted and the appiication date is therefore 1 April 2017. Adjustments have
been made to the comparative financial statements as a result of this transition, see note 16 for further
details.

This partnership is a qualifying entity for the purposes of FRS 102, being a member of a group where
the parent of that group prepares publicly available consolidated financial statements, including this
partnership, which are intended to give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position
and profit or loss of the group. The partnership has therefore taken advantage of exemptions from the
following disclosure requirements:

. Section 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows' — Presentation of a statement of cash flow and related
notes and disclosures;
. Section 11 ‘Basic Financial Instruments’ and Section 12 ‘Other Financial Instrument |ssues’

- Carrying amounts, interest income/expense and net gains/losses for each category of
financial instrument; basis of determining fair values; details of collateral, loan defaults or
breaches, details of hedges, hedging fair value changes recognised in profit or foss and in
other comprehensive income;

. Section 33 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ — Compensation for key management perscnnel.

Where required, equivalent disclosures are given in the consolidated financial statements of the
Partnership's parent company Pinewood Group Limited which are available to the public from
Companies House.

Going concern

The Partners and their respective inferests in the Partnership are set out on page 2. The Partners are
all wholly-owned subsidiaries of Pinewood Group Limited, of which Picture Holdco Limited is the
parent. As such the Partnership is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group of which Pinewood Group
Limited is the parent. The intention of the Pariners is to dissclve the partnership within the foreseeable
future. In view of this, the Partners consider that it is not appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting. There have been no changes to the balances recognised as a result of the change in
preparation basis.

Turnover - rental income

Property rental income and the appropriate allocation of rental premiums are accounted for on a
straight line basis over the lease term. Trading property sales are accounted for on a legal completion
basis. Turmover excludes sales related taxes.

10



Shepperton Studios Property Partnership

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

1 Accounting policies {continued)

Interest recejvable and payable
Interest receivable and payable is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

Praperty, plant and equipment

Long leasehotd buildings were previously treated as investment property measured at fair value
through profit and loss, On adoption of the FRS 102 Triennial Review 2017, management have decided
to transfer them to property, plant and equipment and apply the cost model in accordance with Section
17. Fair value at the transition date of 1 April 2017 has been treated as deemed cost. See notes 8 and
16 for further details.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
loss. Cost comprises the aggregate amount paid and the fair value of any other consideration given to
acquire the asset and includes costs directly attributable to making the asset capable of operating as
intended. Depreciation is calculated on all property, plant and equipment, other than land, from the time
they are available for use on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life as follows:

Long leasehold buildings - 50 years

Land is not depreciated.

Impairment of non-current assets

At each reporting period end date, the Partnership reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

Under the going concern basis of accounting which was adopted in all financial statements of the
partnership up to and including the year ended 31 March 2018, recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

For the current year, where the financial statements are prepared on a basis other than going concern,
the value in use method is not appropriate and the recoverable amount is the fair value less costs to
sell.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Taxation

The provisions of Section 111 of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 require the taxable gains
and losses of a limited partnership to be assessable directly upon the partners. Accordingly no
provision has been made for taxation in these financial statements.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Partnership becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Partnership after deducting all of its liabilities.

11



Shepperton Studios Property Partnership

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

1

Accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at transaction price {including transaction costs),
except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially
measured at fair value (which is normally the transaction price excluding transaction costs), unless the
arrangement constitutes a financing transaction. If an arrangement constitutes a finance transaction,
the financial asset or financial liability is measured at the present value of the future payments
discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when and only when a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire or are settied, b) the Partnership transfers to another party substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or ¢} the Partnership, despite having retained
some significant risks and rewards of ownership, has transferred control of the asset to another party
and the other party has the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and
is able to exercise that abiiity unilaterally and without needing to impose additional restrictions on the
transfer.

Financial liabilities are derecognised only when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Partnership are recorded at the fair value of proceeds received, cash
or other resources received or receivable, net of direct issue costs.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Obligations for loans and borrowings are recognised when the Partnership becomes party to the related
contracts and are measured initially at the fair values of consideration received less directly attributable
transaction costs. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, allocating the interest income or
interest expense over the relevant period. The loan issue costs are amortised in the income statement
over the remaining maturity of the loans at a constant carrying amount and are reviewed for changes in
circumstances that may indicate that the loans will not be held to maturity

Members’ participation rights

Members' participation rights are the rights of a member against the Partnership that arise under the
members' agreement (for example, in respect of amounts subscribed or otherwise contributed
remuneration and profits).

Members' participation rights in the earnings or assets of the Partnership are analysed between those
that are, from the Partnership's perspective, either a financiai liability or equity, in accordance with
section 22 of FRS 102. A member's participation rights including amounts subscribed or otherwise
contributed by members, for example members' capital, are classed as liabilities unless the Partnership
has an unconditional right to refuse payment to members, in which case they are classified as equity.

Profits are automaticaily divided as they arise, so the Partnership does not have an unconditional right
to refuse payment and the amounts arising that are due to members are in the nature of liabilities. They
are therefore treated as an expense and presented as members remuneration charged as an expense
in arriving at the result for the relevant year. To the extent that they remain unpaid at the period end,
they are shown as liabilities. Unrealised gains arising from the revaluation of iong leasehold property
are treated as profit available for discretionary division among mernbers.

All amounts due to members that are classified as liabilities are presented within 'Loans and other
debts due to members' and, where such an amount relates to current year profits, they are recognhised
within ‘Members' remuneration charged as an expense’ in arriving at the relevant year's result.

12



Shepperton Studios Property Partnership

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the Partnership’s financial statements requires management to make judgements,

estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts at the end of the year.

Estimates, assumptions and judgements are applied by the Partnership. These include, but are not
limited to, accruals and provisions for impairments of assets. These estimates, assumptions and
judgements are also evaluated on a continual basis but are not significant.

2 Turnover
All tumover arises from operating lease income within the UK.

3 Employees

There were no employees of the Partnership in the current or prior year.

4 Operating profit

2019 2018
as restated
Operating profit is stated after charging: £'000 £'000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,027 1,027
Fund manager fee 22 26
Asset manager fee 50 50
Auditor's remuneration - audit services 7 7
5 Interest receivable and similar income
2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Interest received from Parent undertakings 236 125
Interest received from Group undertakings 164 153
400 278
6 Interest payable and similar costs
2019 2018
£°000 £'000
Interest paid to Parent undertakings - 30
Interest paid to Group undertakings 9 4
Loan interest paid to Parent undertakings 1,080 1,080
1,089 1,114
7 Members' remuneration
2019 2018
£'000 £'600
Mandatory interest payments 120 137
Automatic division of profit 1,925 3,268
2,045 3,405

13



Shepperton Studios Property Partnership

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

8 Property, pfant and equipment

Long
leasehold
property
£000
Cost or valuation
At 31 March 2018 (as restated) and 31 March 201¢ 56,480
Depreciation
At 31 March 2018 (as restated) 1,027
Provided during the year _— 1__.’027
At 31 March 2019 2,054
Net book value
At 31 March 2019 54,426
At 31 March 2018 (as restated) 55,453

Long leasehoid property has been reclassified to property, plant and equipment from investment
property at 1 April 2017 as a result of the adoption of the amendment to FRS 102, as described in note
16. The fair value at the date of transition was treated as deemed cost.

The Partnership’s fong leasehold investment property was valued as at 31 March 2017 by the General
Partner after obtaining appropriate advice. The property’'s cost and cumulative depreciation on a
histarical accounting basis are £50.3m and £10.7m respectively (2018: £50.3m and £8.8m).

The valuation method was based on existing use and includes the following key assumptions. The
valuaticn of the property was undertaken using a yield based approach.

Yield
Production space 5.97%
Top up rent 22.00%
Media Hub 9.00%
9 Trade and other receivables

2019 2018
£'000 £'000

Amounts due from Group undertakings 3,870 4,413
Amounts due from Parent undertaking 7,319 3,888
11,189 8,301

Intragroup current account balances are repayable on demand and interest is charged at 4.05% (2018:
4.05%).
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Shepperton Studios Property Partnership

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

10

11

Partners’ Funds

Members’ capital treated as equity

The Studios Unit Trust

Baltray No.1 Limited

Shepperton Studios (General Partner) Limited

Total Members’ capital treated as equity

Partners' contribution and advances, included within Partners' Funds are made up of:

Redeemable capital

The Studios Unit Trust

Baltray No.1 Limited

Shepperton Studics (General Partner) Limited

Undistributed profits

The Studios Unit Trust

Baltray No.1 Limited

Shepperton Studios (General Partner) Limited

Other trading balances

The Studios Unit Trust

Baltray No.1 Limited

Shepperton Studios (General Partner) Limited

Total Partners' contribution and advances

Also included in Partners' Funds is a revaluation reserve of £6.0m (31 March 2018 £6.1m).

2019

£000

2

13,360
13,360
21

26,741

1,088
2,718
5

3.811

113
506
13

632

31,184

2018

as restated

£'000

13,360
13,360
21

26,741

1,182
1,182

2,365

77
423
12

512

29,618

Partners’ funds include equity and redeemable advances. They are non-interest bearing and repayable

on wind-up of the Partnership.

Trade and other payables

Amounts owed to fellow Group undertakings
Loan due to Parent undertaking

Other creditors

Accruals

2019
£'000

734
28,324
22

149

29,229

2018
£000

687
27,244

148

28,077

Intragroup current account balances are repayable on demand and interest is charged at 4.05% (2018:
4.05%). The loan due to Parent undertaking is repayable cn demand and interest is charged at 4.50%

(2018: 4.50%).
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Shepperton Studios Property Partnership

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 (continued)
12 Obligations under leases

Lessee
At the reporting end date the Partnership had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

2018 2018
£ £
Within ane year 25 25
Between one and five years 100 100
In over five years 24,525 24,550
24,650 24 675
Lessor
At the reporting end date the group had contracted with tenants for the following minimum lease
payments:
2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Within one year 2576 2,576
Between one and five years 7,728 7,728
In over five years 8,587 11,163
8,597 LA

As disclosed in note 14, the property held by the partnership has been transferred cut since the
reporting date. As a result the leases to which the company was subject at the year end have been
cancelled.

13 Related party transactions

The Parinership has taken the exemption available to it under FRS 102 paragraph 33.1A not to
disclose its related party transactions with fellow group undertakings.

14 Events after the reporting date

In October 2018, the Partnership transferred the interest in its long leasehold property and associated
agreements with tenants to a Group undertaking for consideration of £53.9 million, left outstanding con
an intercompany account. The long leasehoid property represented the Partnership’s only trading asset
and accordingly, following the transfer, the Partnership ceased ta trade. The Partners intend to dissolve
the Partnership following the distribution of its remaining assets.

1§ Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling entity

The ultimate parent entity is PW Real Estate Fund 1ll GP Limited (a company incorporated in Jersey) in
its capacity as general partner of PW Real Estate Fund ill LP (a limited partnership formed in Jersey).
The registered office of PW Real Estate Fund Il GP Limited and PW Real Estate Fund IlI LP is: 1
Waverley Place, Union Street, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1SG.

Pinewood Group Limited is the parent of the smallest group that prepares consolidated financial
statements which include the Partnership. Pinewood Group Limited is incorporated in England and
their registered office is: Pinewood Studios, Pinewood Road, iver Heath, Buckinghamshire, SLO ONH.

Picture Holdco Limited is the parent of the targest group that prepares consolidated financial
statements which include the Partnership. Picture Holdco Limited is incorporated in England and their
registered office is: 18 8t. Swithin's Lane, 4th Floor, London, EC4N 8AD.
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Shepperton Studios Property Partnership

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

16

Adoption of the amendments to FRS 102

Under the amendments to FRS 102 issued in December 2017 arising from the Triennial Review 2017
investment property rented to a group company with a carrying value of £56,480,000 has been
reclassified as property, plant and equipment, as at the transition date of 1 April 2017. This
reclassification used the exemption from full retrospective application by treating the fair value at

transition date as the deemed cost.

As a result of the reclassification of investment property to property, plant and equipment, the fair value
gain of £1,920,000 in the year ended 31 March 2018 was reversed and £1,027,000 of depreciation was
charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income during the year ended 31 March 2018. A reserves
transfer of £124,000 was completed to depreciate the revaluation reserve.

Changes to the Statement of Financial Position

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Partners' funds
Members' other interests
Fair value reserve
Revaluaticn reserve

Total Partners' funds

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties

Total assets

Partners' funds
Loans and other debts due to members
Members' capital classified as a liability

Members' other interests
Fair value reserve
Revaluation reserve

Total Partners' funds

17

At 31 March 2017
As previcusly Adjustment As restated

reported
£'000 £'000 £'000

- 56,480 56,480

56,480 (56,480) -
56,480 - 56,480
66,699 - 66,699
6.212 6.212) -

- 6212 6,212
66,699 - 66,699

At 31 March 2018
As previously Adjustment As restated

reported
£'000 £000 £°000

- 55,453 55,453

58,400 (58,400) -
66,732 {2,947) 63,785
30,009 (903) 29,106
8,132 (8,132) -

- 6,088 6,088

66,732 (2,947) 63,785




Shepperton Studios Property Partnership

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 {(continued)

16

Adoption of the amendments to FRS 102 (continued)

Changes to the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended 31 March 2018

As previously Adjustment As restated

reported
£'000 £'000 £'000
Administrative expenses (76) (1,027) (1.103)
Fair value movement on investment property 1,920 (1,920) -
Profit/(loss) for the financial year available for
discretionary division among members 1,920 (2,947) {1,027)
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